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taken via video conferencing at the public hearing of
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Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com



© 00 N oo o A~ w N P

[EY
o

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

IN THE MATTER OF: HAYMARKET DUPAGE, LLC
Report of Proceedings - 01/06/2021

Page 2

PRESENT:

MR. BRENDAN DALY, Chairnan;

MR, FRANK CARELLO, Conmi ssi oner;
LORI DRUMMOND, Conmi ssioner;
JEFFREY HOLMES, Conmi ssi oner;

5 D O

KRI STA RAY, Comm ssi oner.

ALSO PRESENT:
MR. MO KHAN, Village Pl anner;

MS. SHANNON MALI K JARMUSZ, Director of
Communi ty Devel opnent ;

MS. AMANDA MELONE, Recordi ng Secretary;
MS. YORDANA WYSOCKI, Village Attorney;

HERVAS, CONDON & BERSANI, P.C., by
MR. CHARLES E. HERVAS
333 Pierce Road, Suite 195
ltasca, Illinois 60143
(630) 773-4774
chervas@cbatt orneys. com
Appeared on behalf of Cty of Itasca,;

DASPI N & AUMENT, LLP, by

MS. BRI DGET M O KEEFE

300 Sout h Wacker Drive, Suite 2200
Chicago, Illinois 60606

(312) 258-3795

bokeef e@aspi naunent. com and

BOND, DI CKSON & CONVAY, by
M5. MARY E. DI CKSON
400 South Knoll Street, Unit C
Wieaton, Illinois 60187
(630) 681-1000
mar ydi ckson@ond- di ckson. com
Appear ed on behal f of Haymar ket DuPage LLC;

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com



IN THE MATTER OF: HAYMARKET DUPAGE, LLC
Report of Proceedings - 01/06/2021 Page 3

ALSO PRESENT: (Cont' d.)

© 00 N oo o A~ w N P

[EY
o

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

FRANCZEK, P.C., by
M5. JENNI FER SM TH
300 Sout h Wacker Drive, Suite 3400
Chi cago, Illinois 60606
(312) 786-6589
jas@ranczek. com
Appeared on behalf of Itasca School District;

JOHNSON & BELL, LTD., by

MR. STEPHEN P. ELLENBECKER

33 West Monroe Street, Suite 2700

Chi cago, |IL 60603

(312) 984-0221

el | enbeckers@bl td. com
Appeared on behalf of 865 West Irving Park
Road, LLGC;

OTTOSEN, D NOLFO, HASENBLAG & CASTALDO, LTD., by
MR. STEPHEN H. DI NOLFO
1804 North Naper Boul evard, Suite 350
Naperville, Illinois 60563
(630) 682-0085
sdi nol f o@tt osenl aw. com
Appeared on behalf of Itasca Fire Protection
District.

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com



© 00 N oo o A~ w N P

[EY
o

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

IN THE MATTER OF: HAYMARKET DUPAGE, LLC
Report of Proceedings - 01/06/2021

Page 4

Il NDE X
W TNESS:
LUAY ABOONA
EXAM NATI ON BY: Page
MR ELLENBECKER. ...................... 16
MS. SMTH. ....... .. . . . 54
MS. OKEEFE...... ... ... . .. .. ... ..... 72
MR, ELLENBECKER. ...................... 75
MR DI NOLFO........... .. . ... ... ... 79
MS. OKEEFE...... ... ... .. .. ... ... .... 82
W TNESS
JAMES DOM NI K
MR, ELLENBECKER. ...................... 85
MS. SMTH. . ... ... . . 113
MS. OKEEFE...... ... ... ... ... ... ... .... 127
MR DI NOLFO ........ ... . ... .. ... 132
MR ELLENBECKER. ...................... 144

21

11
11
23

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com



© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN THE MATTER OF: HAYMARKET DUPAGE, LLC

Report of Proceedings - 01/06/2021 Page 5

CHAI RVAN DALY: Good eveni ng everyone, and
wel cone to this neeting of the January 6, 2021,
Itasca Plan Comm ssion. | call this neeting to
or der.

Wul d the secretary pl ease call

roll.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Chai rman Dal y?

CHAl RMAN DALY: Present.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Comm ssi oner
Carel | 0?

COW SSI ONER CARELLGO  Here.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Commi ssi oner
Dr unmond?

COW SSI ONER DRUVMMOND:  Her e.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Conm ssi oner
Hol mes?

COW SSI ONER HOLIVES:  Her e.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Commi ssi oner Ray?

COW SSI ONER RAY:  Here.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Comm ssi oner
Russo? Conmm ssioner Russo?

(No response.)
VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN: He's not in the

meeting right now
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CHAI RVAN DALY: At this point we still have a
quorum for the neeting so we're going to proceed.

Ckay. Good eveni ng everyone.

Today i s Wednesday, January 6th, 2021. Happy New
Year .

The case before the Plan Comm ssion
Is PC 19-014 continued from| ast Decenber 16th.

The Petitioner and owner is
Haymar ket DuPage LLC, and the location is 860 West
| rving Park Road.

The procedures for tonight and
nmeetings noving forward are as follows: This evening
will begin with the Petitioner calling the follow ng
W tnesses: M. Janes Dom nik, M. Luay Aboona from
KLQOA.

Nunmber two: The Pl an Conm ssi on
has adopted new rul es of procedure which are now in
effect.

Nunber three: W are proceeding
renotely due to COVID 19, and the public may watch
t he proceedi ngs through the Village's YouTube
channel .

Nunmber four: Anyone wishing to

make public comment wll be able to do so after the
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presentation of cases. They need to sign up on the

Village's website.

Nunmber five: Anyone wi shing to ask

gquestions of the Petitioner, village staff, or other
parties will be able to do so after the presentation
of cases. The sign-up formis on the Village's
websi te.

And on that note, we have for --

you can't see this piece of paper, but this is the

step-by-step guide for the Haymarket public hearings.

The version from Cct ober of 2020,
the new format for the presentation of cases, for
t hose of you who do have this form we are still on
step 3. There are 10 steps in this process, and we
do appreciate everyone's patience in working through
this.

And at this point | would like to
turn it over to Chuck Hervas who m ght el aborate on
that point and al so nake his opening comrents.

M. Hervas?

MR. HERVAS. Thank you, M. Chairman.

My nane is Chuck Hervas and | am

the attorney advising the Plan Comm ssion in this

matter. We are going to give sone statenents that

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com



© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN THE MATTER OF: HAYMARKET DUPAGE, LLC
Report of Proceedings - 01/06/2021

|"ve given in the past, but for the benefit for those
t hat have not been with us before, |I'mrepeating
t hem

This is a |l egal proceeding with
| egal significance. A court reporter is swearing in
W tnesses and is transcribing the testinony. This is
not a trial, but we are developing a record of
proceedi ngs before the Plan Comm ssion. This is a
public hearing on a zoning petition.

My job is to protect the rights of
the Petitioner, any objectors, and the public. The
Pl an Comm ssion will nake findings and a
recomendation to the Vill age Board.

Pl ease understand that the Plan
Comm ssion is a reconmmendi ng body. The Village Board
wi Il make the final decision on the Haymarket zoning
petition.

Due to the pandem c and the
Governor's energency orders, we are unable to neet in
person. A virtual hearing is not the preferred
met hod for hearing this zoning petition; however, the
busi ness of governnent nust nove forward, and the
virtual hearing has been approved by state statute

and is used by | ocal governnents across the state.

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com

Page 8




© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN THE MATTER OF: HAYMARKET DUPAGE, LLC
Report of Proceedings - 01/06/2021 Page 9

Everyone is doing the best they can under the
ci rcunst ances.

The procedures used by the Plan
Comm ssion for large hearings during the pandem c are
avail able on the Village's website. The website has
a lot of information, including a conprehensive
st ep-by-step gui de about this hearing, which is what
the Chairman referred to.

The public will have an opportunity
to ask questions and provide public comment at the
appropriate tinme, and you'll be able to see on the
st ep-by-step guide when that tinme wll be.

Wtnesses will be presented by the
Petitioner and possibly by other interested parties.
Cross-examnation wll be allowed only by the
attorneys or anyone who has been legally recognized
as an interested party.

Finally, this is a slow and
del i berate process that creates an appropriate record
for a plan comm ssion hearing. For those that are
observing, | ask that you pl ease respect the |egal
process even if you do not agree with it.

Thank you, M. Chairman. [|'Ill send

it back to you.
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CHAI RMAN DALY: Thank you, M. Hervas.

At this point I'd like to formally
open and continue the hearing, and then we will hear
fromPetitioner's |egal team

So the first order of the business
and the only order of business this evening before
the Conm ssion is the continuation of the public
heari ng on case No. PC 19-014.

The request is for petition for a
pl anned devel opnent by special use with exceptions
and Class 1 Site Plan approval all in order to permt

a m xed use residential and health care facility and
ot her accessory uses in the B-2 Comunity Busi ness
District at 860 West Irving Park Road.
| wll now entertain a notion to

open this continued public hearing.

COW SSI ONER RAY: | notion to open this and
continue this public hearing; Comm ssioner Ray.

COMM SSI ONER CARELLG  Second; Commi ssi oner
Carel |l o.

CHAl RMAN DALY: WIIl the Secretary pl ease
call the vote to open the neeting.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Commi ssi oner
Carel | 0?
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COW SSI ONER CARELLG  For.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Comm ssi oner
Dr unmond?

COW SSI ONER DRUMMOND:  For .

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Comm ssi oner
Hol mes?

COW SSI ONER HOLMES:  For.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE:  Commi ssi oner
Ray?

COW SSI ONER RAY:  For .

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: And has
Comm ssi oner Russo showed up at all or no?

(No response.)

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Ckay.

VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN: Amanda, | believe he's
goi ng to be absent for tonight.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Ckay. Thank
you.

CHAI RVAN DALY: Ckay. The notion carries.
The public hearing is now open.

Before we swear in this evening's

Wi tnesses, | would ask Ms. O Keefe if she has any
openi ng statenents for the Comm ssion before we swear

in her wtnesses.
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M5. O KEEFE: | do have a brief opening
statenent that relates to ny first wtness.

Let ne just start off by saying
good evening. Bridget O Keefe, for the record, with
my co-counsel Mary Dickson. W're here today on
behal f of Haymar ket DuPage.

Toni ght we're go to present Luay
Aboona, who's a principal with KLOA. He's an expert
who prepared the report on traffic and parking
I ssues.

We're going to ask himto present
first because he's not avail able on January 13th or
January 20th, so we want to ensure that he is able to
present his testinony this evening.

After M. Aboona is conpleted with
his testinony and cross-exam nation, we wll return
to the questioning of M. Domnik to hopefully
conpl ete his cross-exam nati on.

So if we could swear in M. Aboona
and M. Dom nik, and then I'll just nmake a bri ef
statenent of introduction for M. Aboona.

(Luay Aboona sworn.)
M5. O KEEFE: Just one second because we're

not showi ng on the screen.
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Can you see us? W're not show ng
on the screen right now

There we go. Thank you.

Ckay. So as |'ve stated, we're
going to be presenting M. Luay Aboona for testinony
this evening. He's a principal with KLOA, which is a
premer traffic and parking engineering firm which
has operated in Chicago since 1995.

M. Aboona is a founding principal
of KLOA with over 29 years of professional
experience, and he oversees the firms traffic,
transportation, and parking assignnments for public
and private sector clients.

M . Aboona received his Bachel or of
Sci ence Degree in civil engineering fromthe
Uni versity of South Hanpton in England, and a Master
of Science Degree in structural engineering from
Nor t hwest ern Uni versity.

M. Aboona is a registered
pr of essi onal engineer in the State of Illinois and
carries nenber status in the Institute of
Transportation Engi neers and the Urban Land
| nstitute.

M. Chairman, | ask you to accept

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
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M . Aboona as an expert witness on traffic and
par ki ng i ssues.
CHAI RVAN DALY: | accept your witness as an

expert in the field. Thank you.

M5. O KEEFE: So M. Aboona has prepared an
extensive report on the traffic and parking
characteristics of Haymarket that was previously
I ntroduced into the record as Exhibit No. 41.

|'"d like to provide a brief summary
of KLOA s finding, and given the thoroughness of the
report and in the interest of the tine, we are just
going to rely on M. Aboona's report and not have him
nmake a separate presentation. | will make a quick
sunmary of his findings and then he will be avail abl e
to answer any questions that Counsel have.

So in summary, M. Aboona's report
found that based on the proposed devel opnent plan and
the traffic capacity analyses for the full build-out
of the devel opnent, the findings and recomendati ons
of the study are as follows: The proposed
devel opnent will have a low traffic inpact on the
surroundi ng roadway networ K.

Nunmber two: The signalized access

off of Illinois 53 and the two unsignalized access

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
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points off both I-53 and Illinois 19 has served the
Spring Lake's business park, and the proposed

devel opnent will continue to operate at acceptable

| evel s of service during peak hours, and no roadway
or traffic control inprovenents are recommended at
these intersections in conjunction with the proposed
devel opnent .

Nunmber three: The existing full
access drive off Spring Lake Drive opposite Mapl ewood
Drive that serves the site will continue to be
adequate to acconmpdate their projected traffic
estimated to be generated by the proposed
redevel opnent.

And, finally, based on the surveys
of the existing simlar facility and data provi ded by
Haymar ket DuPage, the exiting approxi mate 384 space
parking |l ot serving the site wll be adequate to
accommodat e t he peak parking demand of the proposed
devel opnent which will primarily consist of
enpl oyees.

So that's the summary of KLQOA' s
findings, and now|l'd like to turn it over to
M . Aboona and whi chever counsel is going to go first

Wi th regards to cross-exam nati on.
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MR. ELLENBECKER: This is Steve ElIenbecker.
M. Chairman, if | have perm ssion to proceed?

CHAI RVAN DALY: Pl ease do, M. ElI|lenbecker.
Thank you.

MR, ELLENBECKER  Thank you.

Before getting too far down the
road here, | advised Counsel earlier today by email,
and |' m advi si ng the Comm ssion and you,

M. Chairman, that in addition to parties or people |
previously indicated | represent, | also represent
960 Mapl ewood LLC, and 960 Mapl ewood LLC is
considered an interested person as that termis
defined in these proceedi ngs as a property owner
within 250 feet of 860 West Irving Park Road.

LUAY ABOONA
called as a witness herein, having been first duly
sworn, was exam ned and testified as follows:

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR ELLENBECKER:
Q Good evening, M. Aboona.
A Good eveni ng.
Q For purposes of our proceedi ngs here
tonight, you were hired by Ms. O Keefe and Haymarket ;

correct?

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
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A. That's correct.
Q And woul d you agree that as it pertains

to Haymarket's application in this case, that it was
In Haymarket's best interest for you to find a
negligible, low, or no inpact on traffic for its
proposed facility?

A | prepared a professional traffic study
to determ ne what the inpact of the facility would be
and that's how | reported it.

Q Right. And you'd agree, though, from
its position as an applicant, it would be in
Haymarket's best interest for the results of your
study to conclude that there is a | ow, no, or
negligible inpact on traffic; correct?

A | -- 1 -- not necessarily. | think it's
the interest of any entity or facility to understand
what the traffic inpacts are and whether the access
and the roadway system can handle the traffic,
because if it couldn't, then it could adversely
I npact their operations.

Q Ckay. And if there's an excessive or a
| arge enough inpact on traffic, it can al so inpact
the surrounding community, as well as the applicant's

proposed facility; correct?

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
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A. That's what the purpose of the traffic
study is, is to identify these issues.

Q Ckay. And as Ms. O Keefe indicated, you
prepared a report; correct?

A Correct.

Q And how nuch of that report did you
actual ly author as opposed to other people in your
firn®

A Thi s was done col |l aboratively within ny
firm | supervised a lot of the analysis and the
work, and | participated in the report witing, but
this was a coll aborative report.

Q Did you performany of the traffic
assessnents or inquiries that are reflected in the
report. D d you personally do that?

A If you say that | -- whether | ran the
anal ysis using the specific software, no, | did not.

Q Did you go to the proposed | ocati on,
| ook at the inplicated intersections, crosswal ks, and

si dewal ks yourself or was that sonebody else from

your firnf
A | have visited the site, but the -- the
proj ect engineer on the project -- on the project did

t he sane thing.
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Q Wul d you agree that the size of the
facility; occupancy of the proposed facility; planned
activities; travel habits of patients/staff nenbers
were all inportant variables for your traffic
assessnent ?

A Yes.

Q And nost, if not all, of those
vari abl es, you got that information from-- as your
report says, fromthe operator; correct?

A That is correct.

Q And the operator in this case was
Haymar ket ; correct?

A. Yes.

Q Did you personally speak with a person
or people at Haymarket to get the information or to
fill in those variables fromyour report?

A No. That information was given to ne.
| have spoken with themto understand the
information, but | did not participate or provide any
I nput on the information.

Q kay. There was a chart attached, |
thi nk, at PDF 40 of your report, and it included sone
of these netrics.

Was that chart provided to you by
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Counsel or Haymarket ?

A. That was provided by Haymarket, vyes.

Q Who at Haymarket or affiliated with
Haymar ket did you speak to to acquire the information

regardi ng size, occupancy, activities, that sort of

t hi ng?

A It was Karen Kissel.

Q VWhat was the | ast nane?

A Ki ssel .

Q And did you neet with anybody in
addition to Karen Kissel from Haymarket ?

A | think initially when I first got
i nvol ved | spoke with M. Misil, | believe is his

| ast name, but it has been primarily Ms. Kissel since
t hen.
Q Did Haymarket -- in addition to giving
you this chart, did they provide you wth any
hi storical data to back up any of the information or
nunbers they provided to you?
A | don't understand the question. Wen
you say historical data, what are you referring to?
Q Well, right. Dd -- you got a chart
t hat had nunbers assigned to different categories,

right, whether it was to account for patients com ng
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In or assessnents of patients; correct?

A. Yes.

Q And di d Haymar ket give you any
docunentati on that supported any of those nunbers?

A. No.

Q So that chart that you were provided,
you were basically just given -- do you know where
Haymar ket got that data?

A | assune based on their experience at
the -- at their currently facility, but | don't know
anyt hi ng beyond t hat.

Q Do you do -- as part of your assessnent,
did you do any assessnent of Haymarket's \West Loop
facility to determine any trends or patterns with
regard to patient flow, activities, traffic
I nplications?

A | did not.

Q Did -- prior to this assignnent, did you
have any prior experience assessing the inpact on
auto, foot, and bike traffic related to a substance
use treatnment center?

A | think, yeah, earlier this year ny firm
prepared a study for a facility that was proposed in

A ynpia Fields.
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Q Ckay. And do you recall the size of the
facility proposed in Aynpia Fields?

A | do not recall, no.
Q Did you find any substance use treatnent
center in the -- in the country of the size being

proposed by Haymar ket DuPage?

A. | did not do that conparison, no.

Q Now, for many traffic assessnents |ike
you did here, you would use the Institute of
Transportation Engineer's trip generation nmanual;
correct?

A That's correct.

Q And, in fact, | was |ooking online --
you can find lots of your reports or at |east your
firms reports -- and in no fewer than 20 of those
prior reports, they all refer to data conpiled from
the trip generation nmanual; correct?

A That's correct.

Q And -- but here, due to the uni queness
of Haymarket's proposed use, you couldn't use trip
generation data; correct?

A Yes.

Q And the purpose of using the trip

generation manual is that based on coding, you're
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allowed to take sonme nunbers to study peak hours and

daily traffic versus facilities of |ike kind;

correct?
A You nean using | T?
Q Yes.
A Yes.
Q And what about Haymarket's proposed

facility made it unique to the point where you
couldn't use the trip generation manual as you
usual ly do?

A There was no category that -- that woul d
fit the description of the facility. There's nothing
in the |IT book that deals with treatnent facilities.

Q And based on that, that led you to rely

entirely on information provided by Haymarket;

correct?

A Yes.

Q Just to go through sone of the netrics
as you understood them-- and do you have a copy of

your report in front of you, M. Aboona?

A. | do, yes.

Q | nmean, at tinmes we mght pull certain
portions of it up, but if you and | are on the sane

page and we're just trying to get sone prelimnary
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facts out, we may just forego that del ayed procedure
and just go through the report, if that's okay with
you.

A Sur e.

Q By way of prelimnary netrics, it's your
under st andi ng that Haymar ket DuPage is planning a
240-bed facility; is that right?

A Yes.

Q And of those 247 [sic] beds, 96 woul d be
treat nent beds?

A 96 treatnent, yes.

Q And 144 of those beds woul d be recovery

beds?

A Yes.

Q And di d you al so understand t hat
Haymar ket was going to -- or was anticipating 96

out patients per day?

A. Yes.

Q Al right. Now, | saw sonething in your
report -- and if you need to look at it, that's
fine -- Haymarket told you that half of the
outpatient patients that would be treated daily would
come fromthe recovery hones; correct?

A. Yes.
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Q And that would nmean that half of the 96
out patient patients would cone from outside the
facility; correct?

A. Yes.

Q Al right. So a mnimmof, in that
I nstance, 48 new people daily would be comng to the
facility for outpatient treatnent. |s that your
under st andi ng?

A Yes, correct.

Q And if there are 144 recovery beds but
only 48 of themare getting outpatient treatnent
daily, was it your understanding in talking to
Ms. Kissel that approximately 100 patients in the
recovery beds wouldn't be getting outpatient
treatnent at all?

A | don't know the answer to that.

Q And of the 144 recovery residents, do
you have an understanding that they'll be expected to
| eave the facility daily, whether it be for job
searches, actual jobs, or other reasons?

A | believe a certain portion of them
woul d.

Q Do you know what portion of the 144

patients in the recovery beds woul d be expected to
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| eave daily?

A. | believe it was 10 percent.

Q Ckay. Did Haymarket or M. Kissel
specifically indicate that that nunmber woul d be
vari abl e based on what type of patients or their
backgrounds are in the recovery beds?

A | was not given that information.

Q Were you given information about what
the goal or purpose of folks in the recovery beds is;
in other words, their return to, | guess for |ack of
a better word, a normal life or active |life outside
the facility?

A | really did not get into that detail
for ny purposes.

Q But in terns of patients in the recovery
beds |l eaving the facility, did you understand that
sonme woul d | eave by car?

A. Yes, that's the assunption we nade.

Q And did you assune that sone woul d | eave

by foot, pedestrians?

A For our purposes we assuned that they
will be driving. That's how we assessed the inpact.
Q And for purposes of your assunption,

just so | heard it right, you assunme that only
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10 percent or approximately 14 of the patients in the
recovery beds would |l eave the facility daily?

A. Yes.

Q And di d Haymar ket give you any
expl anation for how they arrived at that 10 percent
nunber ?

A. | -- | assune, again, based on their
experi ence and know edge of their operations.

Q You indicate on page 1 of your report,
al so, that Haymarket was going to take patients or
transport patients to doctor appointnents and on
errands; correct?

A. Yes.

Q Do you know how many different -- or how
many vans Haymar ket was going to utilize or have
on-site to run these patients?

A My understanding is they probably wl|
have maybe five or six vans.

Q And was it your understandi ng then that
they'd have -- do you know if these vans would run on
a set schedul e?

A | don't know if they have figured that
out yet, so it could be on sone maybe on set. O her

could be nore of a -- a -- a denand.
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Q s it your understanding as part of this
assessnment that all traffic in and out of the
proposed facility will use the single access off of
Spring Lake Drive?

A. Yes.

Q And that that single access is right
across from Mapl ewood Drive; correct?

A That's correct.

Q Do you know what type of businesses are
| ocated in and around Mapl ewood Drive?

A | do not know specifically, but as part
of our traffic study we did |look at that. W | ooked
at the -- at the driveway and the proximty to the --
to the -- to the Irving Park Road.

Q For instance, one of ny clients is d ass
Solutions. Do you know what type of staging or other
activities dass Solutions has in and out of its
facility on a daily basis?

A. | do not know specific to that -- to
that property, but like | said, we have done counts
at the intersection of Mapl ewood and Spring Lake so
we under stand what kind of traffic is using that
I ntersection but not specific to business of your

client.
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Q Speaki ng of Mapl ewood and Spring Lake,
did you do -- | was | ooking through your report and
it's possible | mssed it. D d you do any anal ysis
of traffic at Illinois 53, or Rohlw ng Road, and
| rving Park Road?

A W di d not.

Q Wiy -- why did your traffic assessnent
negate an evaluation of the intersection of the two
busi est roads in closest proximty to Haymarket ?

A Because we felt that based on the
| ocation of the site and accessibility of the site,
and given that traffic will be distributed to both
| rving Park and Rohlw ng Road, that the inpact on
that intersection will not be significant.

Q But you'd agree you didn't | ook at
accident data for Irving Park and 53; correct?

A No, | did not.

Q You didn't count cars or traffic at peak
hours or other hours on Irving Park and 53; correct?

A No, we didn't do any of that.

Q s it your understandi ng, based on
talking to Ms. Kissel or reviewing nmaterials, that
Haymar ket represents that this proposed facility is

essential to serve the needs of DuPage residents and
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those in the collar counties?
A. Again, that's not -- that's not part of
nmy expertise, so | didn't get that -- | didn't
di scuss that with her.
Q That's fair. For the purposes of ny
next few questions, I'd like -- I'"mrepresenting to

you that Haymar ket has proposed this facility as one
that woul d serve the needs of DuPage and the collar
counties of WII and McHenry and possi bly Lake; okay?

A kay.

Q |f -- do you have an understanding as to
how many of Haynmarket patients would actually have
the benefit of having an autonobile at the 860 West
Irving Park Road facility to use to go in and out or
to and fromthe facility?

A O her than the 10 percent of the
recovery and the outpatients that would be com ng in,
the rest will -- will not be driving.

Q And, in fact, your report indicates --
think it's on page 4. You tal k about different nodes
of transportation that patients or visitors or
anybody going to and from Haymarket's proposed
| ocati on would be able to utilize; correct?

A Page 4 of the report or page 3?
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Q Let nme | ook again. Oh, here it is.
Yeah, it's on page 4, sir, the first reference to it,
at least. |It's under the section "Existing Roadway
System Characteristics.”

A Ckay.

Q And under the section "lrving Park
Road," and then it says "lrving Park Road is served
by Pace bus Route No. 616."

Do you see that?

A. Ch, yeah, uh-huh

Q Al right. So one node of
transportation that you or soneone in your firm
becanme aware of was Pace bus Route 616; correct?

A. Yes.

Q Do you know if Pace bus Route 616 goes
i nto DuPage County other than in |Itasca?

A It does not. It goes east and then it
connects to the Rosenont Transit Center.

Q Right. So based on that answer, you'd
agree that the Pace bus 616 doesn't go to WII,
McHenry, or Lake County, as well; correct?

A Yes.

Q And is there any other Pace bus that

woul d run fromthe proposed facility in Itasca to
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anywhere -- any other towns in DuPage?
A. That's the only one in proximty to the
site.
Q And do you know that -- did you know

t hat Pace discontinued bus route 616 as of yesterday?
It's no | onger in service.

A. | was not aware of that.

Q So if that's the case and there are no
ot her Pace busses, you'd agree that Pace bus is not a
transportation option to or from Haymar ket DuPage;
correct?

A Yes, unl ess Pace decides to resune
service after COVID.

Q Ckay. Now, you indicate in your report
that Irving Park Road is a road that has two | anes in

each direction, correct, east, west?

A. Yes.
Q Do you know how far east fromthe
proposed facility Irving Park Road or Illinois 19

actually bottl enecks into one | ane each way?

A | think it's after the overpass.

Q Did any part of your traffic assessnent
anal yze the effect on traffic that the proposed

facility mght have at or around village hall or the
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fire departnent where Irving Park Road goes into one
| ane each way?

A W didn't ook at it fromthat
per spective, no.

Q Do you know how far west of the proposed
facility Irving Park Road goes to one | ane each way?

A West of the facility?

Q Yes.

A Yeah, it would be west of the signalized
i ntersection wth Rohlw ng Road.

Q And did your traffic assessnent do
anything to assess the inpact on traffic that the
proposed facility m ght have on westbound traffic of
| rving Park Road?

A. We didn't do it specifically to that
particul ar issue, no.

Q Did you know that at |least as it
pertains fromltasca going west on Illinois Route 19,
that that's the major, if not the only, thoroughfare
for people driving children to school at Lake Park
East Canpus?

A Yes.

Q Did you choose a day to do your traffic

assessnent that woul d have included a day that school
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was in session?

A. | mean, we nornmally do our counts on
weekdays to represent nornmal traffic conditions.

Q Right. Wll, do you know if Lake Park
East was in session outside of an exam schedul e on

May 29, 20197

A. "' m not aware of that, no.
Q Did your assessnents do any sort of --
wel |, strike that.
You al so did an assessnent -- or as

part of your assessnent you indicated that there was
very | ow foot and bike traffic in Itasca; right?

A. In the vicinity of the site, yes, at the
I ntersections that we counted.

Q And did you nake any determnation as to
where residents who were, | guess, noving about by
foot or bike, which direction -- where they'd be
going after they left the facility on bike or foot?

A. Which facility?

Q The proposed Haymarket facility.

Do you want ne to re-ask it?

A Well, are you asking this relative to

the statenent that we made about low traffic and | ow

pedestrian and bicycle novenents?
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Q Right. You indicated that there were
low traffic -- foot traffic and bicycle novenent in
| tasca present; right?

A. Right, at the intersections that we did
count, we didn't observe -- we observed | ow activity,
yes.

Q Right. D d you do any sort of
assessnment of foot or bike traffic, for instance,
closer to village hall, the fire departnent, and the
| ocal swi nm ng pool where Irving Park Road goes down
to one | ane each way?

A No, we didn't -- we didn't -- our study
didn't go that far east.

Q Did you do any assessnent to determ ne
an increase in foot or bike traffic created or
pronpted by patients at Haynmar ket DuPage?

A W did not. W |ooked at the smaller
vehi cul ar i npact on the roadway system

Q Did you nake any determ nation about --
wel |, strike that.

Ms. Kissel told you, though, that
if 10 percent of patients are going to have cars and
the rest presumably do not have cars, and if they

were going to leave the facility they'd be | eaving by
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foot or bike; correct?
A. |"'mnot sure about that. | -- | don't
recall what happens to the 90 percent.
Q Ckay. I n your assessnment of the area in

and around Haymar ket DuPage, if people were trying to
go sonewhere, let's say go west by foot, is -- is the
area in and around Haymar ket DuPage goi ng west
conducive to foot traffic?

A There is a sidewal k on Irving Park Road
on the south side.

Q Right. And that sidewal k only goes
east; correct?

A It goes west, as well, to the signal.

Q And where does it -- yeah, it stops at
the gas station at the corner of 53 and Irving Park
that you didn't exam ne; correct?

A And it does continue beyond that.
There's a crosswalk -- there are crosswal ks on all
four legs of the intersection.

Q s there a sidewal k on the north or
south side of Irving Park Road west of 53?

A No. There are sidewal ks on the south
si de.

Q Based on your evaluation of the area,
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there's a sidewal k west of 53 on Irving Park Road?

A. Yes.

Q | s there a sidewal k on Rohl wi ng Road
goi ng sout h?

A There is not.

Q Did you nmake any determ nation as part
of your study about whether the Haymarket proposed
facility on Irving Park Road was conducive to bike
traffic or safe for bike traffic for its patients?

A | f you are asking whether there are any
bi ke facilities in the area, the answer is no.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Hey, Mo, are you able to
pull up M. Aboona's report, specifically page 6,
pl ease?

VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN. Page 6? (Indicating.)

MR ELLENBECKER: Yes, that's it.

BY MR ELLENBECKER

Q Do you see the site map here,
M. Aboona?
A. Yes.
Q And if it's easier for you to | ook at

your report in front of you, that's fine, as well.
But as we were talking earlier, on

this site map it's pretty clear you designate the
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proposed facility with the word "site"; correct?
A. Uh- huh, vyes.
Q Al right. And as we go directly south
fromthe facility, that's Spring Lake Drive; right?
A. Yes.
Q And then eventually as Spring Lake Drive

wraps around to the west and basically term nates or

Ts at Illinois 53; correct?
A Yes.
Q And is there any sidewal k for wal ki ng or

bi ke traffic of Haymarket patients once they get to
53?2

A. Not at -- no, there isn't.

Q Are there any -- as we |look at the site
map on page 6 of your report, where are the
crosswal ks, sir? Fromthe Haymarket site, where is

the nearest crosswal k for patients to cross Irving

Par k Road?
A. At the -- at the signalized intersection
of 53 and 19.

Q Ckay. So at 53 and 19 there is a
signalized crosswal k but there's no sidewal k,
correct, after that point?

A There is a short segnent and then it
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ends.

Q Ckay. Did -- as part of your traffic
study, did you nake any sort of assessnent, with the
hel p of Haymarket or otherw se, to determ ne where
the mgjority of Haymarket's proposed wor kforce was
going to cone from i.e., east-west, north-south?

A. No, we -- | -- no, we did not.

Q You' d agree, though, based on your site
assessnent, if workers were comng fromthe east,
let's say the i medi ate east, whether it be
Wod Dal e, Bensenville, Franklin Park, sonmewhere
around there, that the majority of that traffic would
be com ng through Itasca on Illinois Route 19;
correct?

A. There's no doubt that sone wll cone
fromthat direction, yes.

Q Did -- and | think | know the answer to
this question, but I'Il ask it anyway.

Did you do any sort of assessnent
to determne the inpact of traffic that would be
i nfl uenced by Haymarket's proposed facility on the
intersection of Irving Park/Wal nut at the Metra train
crossi ng?

A Not as part of this study, no.
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Q Let's | ook at page 14 of your report.

A.  Page 14.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Mo, if you could go to page
14, it has Table 2.

VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN: (I ndicating.)

BY MR ELLENBECKER:

Q kay. And, M. Aboona, if it helps you
and you need to | ook at the chart that Haymarket
provided to you, please pull it out, but | have sone
guestions regarding the categories here on this
chart.

According to the information you
were provided by Haymarket, patients who cone in for
an assessnment, none would cone in and none woul d
| eave during peak hours, correct, in the norning?

A. Yes.

Q Did Haymar ket ever tell you why patient
assessnments woul d never occur between the peak hours?

A No.

Q And just for people |listening, what were
your peak hours for the norning? Wat tinme period
wer e you usi ng?

A It was based on the traffic patterns in

the area, was 7:00 to 8:00 in the norning, and -- |et
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me just look it up -- and 4:30 to 5: 30.

Q kay. And in ternms of the
weekday daily -- weekday daily two-way, just explain
for me, what does that -- what are those two col ums
in and out? What does that column represent?

A That's daily trips over a 24-hour
peri od.

Q Okay. So regardless of whether it
occurred during peak tines, that's what the daily --

A Yes, that's correct.

Q And Haymarket told you that there would
be 10 patients in and 10 patients out who cone in for
assessnent daily?

A Yes.

Q Did they tell you or give you any idea
as to where that information canme fronf

A Again, this is part of the -- that
spreadsheet that they provided.

Q (kay. And for outpatients, we have
out patients for weekday eveni ng peak hours, you have
five in, five out; correct?

A Yes.

Q Now, this is based on a total nunber, |

guess, of 96 outpatients; correct?
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A. Yes.
Q And of those 96 we tal ked about earlier,

at | east 48 of those would be com ng from outside the
facility; correct?

A. Yes.

Q And if that's the case, why are there
only 24 in --

A Yeah, that's --

Q -- at Haymar ket DuPage?

A No, | understand. That's a typo in the
table. That shoul d have been 48.

Q Ckay.
A. So it should be 48 in and 48 out.
Q Ckay.

A. And just to clarify, for the visitors
that should be a zero because, you know, there would
be no visitors during the weekday. So, in essence,

t he bottom nunber 197 doesn't change.

Q Ckay. We'll -- we'll get down to
visitors in a second.

The next category is recovery hone,
and you have seven in fromthe recovery hone.
Do you know why seven patients from

the recovery hone would be comng in during the peak
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nmor ni ng hours and none woul d be | eaving? And where
woul d they be com ng fron?

A Yeah, that -- yeah, and that nunber is
probably too high based on -- on the infornmation
given. So that, again, could be sonething that woul d
be lower than that. It should be | ower than that.

Q Ckay. But of the nunber going out -- of
the 144 in recovery beds you have zero goi ng out
during the week -- the peak weekday, correct, the
nor ni ng?

A The norni ng peak, yes.

Q Right. But if any of those recovery
honme patients are working, you were advi sed that
absol utely none of the 144 recovery hone patients
woul d be | eaving between 7:00 and 8: 00 AwWP

A Well, | nmean, ny understandi ng of that
Is it's going to happen throughout the day. |[It's not
going to be necessarily concentrated in one
particul ar hour.

Q Well -- and that's fair enough. So
let's go to the weekday daily. So this would
enconpass all of the patients.

So you were told by Haymar ket that

of the 144 recovery hone patients only 13 woul d be
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| eaving in the norning?

A. Yes.

Q Were you told what the other 131 woul d
be doing during the day?

A My understanding is that 10 percent of
t hem woul d have -- would be driving.

Q Okay. But were you told how others, the

ot her 131 would be leaving the facility?

A |"mnot certain if they would be | eaving
the facility. |'mnot sure about that.
Q And your report indicates that even if

they don't have their own cars, sonme m ght be |eaving
by Uber or taxi; correct?

A That could apply also to other
categories, you know, |ike outpatients and so forth.

Q Ri ght. Do you have anything other than
what Haymarket told you to verify or confirmthat
recovery hone patients, of those, only 10 percent
woul d be leaving the facility?

A | do not have any other data, no.

Q You tal ked about visitors a bit earlier.
s it your understanding that Haymar ket doesn't all ow
weekday visitors?

A That's ny understandi ng, yes.
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Q Ckay. Do you know why, then, you would
have two in, two out on weekday eveni ngs?

A Yeah, that nmay be -- that's probably
sonet hing that was a m sunderstandi ng on our part at
the tinme when we generated this table.

Q And then you have weekday daily two-way.
You have 24 visits in and out?

A Yeah, that's what | alluded to earlier,
that -- that there will be no visitors weekdays. It
woul d only be weekends.

So all of our understandi ng when we
first interpreted the data, that there would be
weekday visitors, but obviously upon further
clarification, that it would be only on weekends.

Q Well, were you told what the quantity of
weekend visitors would be?

A Yes. It's in the chart. It would be
24. That's the 24 nunber.

Q So the 24 are weekend visitors?

A. Yes.

Q And so of the 240 patients, only 24
visitors would cone? |Is that your understandi ng?

A That's ny under st andi ng, yes.

Q And with regard to vendors, you were
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told by Haynmarket that none of the vendors would cone
duri ng the weekday peak hour norning or peak hour
eveni ng; right?

A. Yes. It would be nore during the day.

Q Do you know i f Haymar ket has a policy
that, say, food vendors can't deliver m |k between
7:00 and 8:00; it has to either be before or after?

A. | "' m not sure about a policy, but, again,
t hese nunbers are very mnimal, so even if it does
occur, it's not going to be -- it's not going to
change significantly what the findings are.

Q You further discuss transportation

access, and | can't renenber if | asked you this, but

does Metra service -- is there any Metra service from
Itasca to the rest of DuPage, WII, or MHenry
Counti es?

A | don't renenber offhand, but definitely

not McHenry or WII.

Q Wul d you agree that based on what you
do know about public transportation, that there is
absolutely no public transportati on node available to
transport or for someone from Haymarket's proposed
center in Itasca to get to, say, Naperville?

A. That -- that is correct.
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And, again, just to enphasize, in

nmy study, even though | nake nention of them | did
not account for any of these travel npdes to be
reduced because of public transportation.

Q This sane single access off of
Spring H Il Drive, in addition to -- so we've got
staff, incomng patients, current patients, vendors.
Al so, that would be the main entrance for police if
they have to go to the facility; correct?

A. Yes.

Q And that one entrance would be the only

access in and out for EMs if they have to go to the

facility?
A. Yes.
Q And it would be the only access for any

mai nt enance trucks or anything el se that have to go
in and out of the facility;, correct?

A. Yeah. | nean, it's the only access that
served the 161-room hotel for many years, so yes.

Q Well, what was the occupancy of the
161-room hotel historically?

A It doesn't matter, it's a 161-room hotel
so it could be fully occupied wth all kind of other

functions goi ng on.
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The -- the -- the point is that
that access route was designed to accommopdate a hot el
of that size functioning at full capacity.

Q kay. As part of your assessnent, did
you do any actual historical site assessnent of the
Holiday Inn when it operated as a Holiday |Inn?

A. No.

Q So as we sit here now, you don't know
what the inpact on traffic was at the Holiday Inn in
actuality as an operating hotel; correct?

A | nmean, | know based on historical data
for hotels of that size.

Q Ri ght, but you didn't know -- you have
no data and no personal information about the Holi day
Inn in lItasca; correct?

A Not specifically, no.

Q The only thing you have regarding hotels
of that size is what you got fromthe traffic
generation; correct?

A Yes. Assuming a hotel that was
successful for many years, yes.

Q You indicate -- or you don't, but
Haymar ket indicates to you that their staff wll be

di stributed 50 percent on the first shift; correct?
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A Yes.
Q 40 percent on the second and 10 percent

on the third; is that right?

A Yes.

Q And 100 percent of those staff nenbers
woul d be driving to work? At |east that was the

presunption; correct?

A Correct.
Q And you were told -- and we went through
the netrics at the beginning -- that there would be

163 staff nmenbers expected to service Haymarket's
proposed facility; correct?

A That woul d be the total enploynent
force. That's not going to be in the three shifts.

Q Right. So on a daily basis across three
shifts, it's proposed or anticipated that there woul d
163 staff nenbers; correct?

A No. It could be 117.

Q kay. So there would be 163 total staff

menbers --

A Yes.

Q -- but on a daily basis there would only
be 1177

A Yes.
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Q And the third shift would have the
fewest anobunt at only 10 percent; correct?

A Yes.

Q And so -- and this mght be slightly out
of the purview of your report, but based on that, the
240-patient facility during the third shift would
only have approximately 11 staff nenbers overseeing
those patients; correct?

A Yes.

Q Now -- |'m al nost done here.

On page 27 of your report you have
a section called "Parking Based on Existing
Facility."

Do you see that?

A Yes.

Q And you used a conparison facility to
assess the adequacy of the parking needs; correct?

A Yes.

Q And the facility used for conparison
pur poses was Wodridge Interventions; right?

A Yes.

Q And how did you decide to use that
facility?

A That was based on ny di scussions with
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M. Misil.

Q Ckay. And M. Musil, again, was with
Haymar ket ; correct?

A. Yes, uh- huh.

Q Dd M. Misil tell you why he suggested

to use interventions at Wodridge as a conpari son

facility?
A. | don't -- | nmean, that was a whil e ago.
| don't recall, but when | asked if we could | ook at

a simlar facility, that was a | ocation that he
suggested we | ook at, yeah.

Q Did you ask M. Miusil if there were any
facilities at or around the sanme size as that
proposed by Haymar ket DuPage?

A. Again, this was last -- well, actually,
this was in 2019, so | don't recall how the
di scussi on went.

Q Right. Well, if you had your pick,
right -- if you had your pick on a conparison
facility, would you choose to pick one that's at or
about the sane size as the proposed facility or
choose one that's a third of the size of the proposed
facility?

A Well, again, | nean, we -- we rectify

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com



© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN THE MATTER OF: HAYMARKET DUPAGE, LLC

Report of Proceedings - 01/06/2021 Page 52

that by relating the parking to the beds. So it
could be a different size, but you develop a ratio
that would then you can apply to any size facility.

Q well, yeah, we'll --

A That is nornmally done.

Q We'll get to the ratio, but in a perfect
wor |l d, M. Aboona, or an ideal situation, would you
prefer to have a conparison facility that's the sane
or about the sane size as the one proposed?

A Well, | nean, perfect world, but if you
| ook at the data how we rely on, you know, |TE that
you cited, you know, it has a range of -- of sizes of
bui | dings and units and the like, so you can match it
one to one.

What you try to do is get the

information, relate it to -- to a variable so you can
apply it to -- you know, to other uses, to other
| ocati ons.

Q Wth regard to your assessnent here, ITE

Is out the window. You said there's no count based
on the uniqueness in the traffic.
A No, | brought ideas and gave exanpl es.
You said, you know, that it

shouldn't be one to one in terns of a size

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com




© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN THE MATTER OF: HAYMARKET DUPAGE, LLC

Report of Proceedings - 01/06/2021 Page 53

conparison, and I'm-- |'msaying that even the data
that is published for other facilities and ot her
uses, not necessarily this, it gives a range of

Si zes.

So, you know, you can't just match
it one to one. What you rely onis the ratio that
woul d be applicabl e.

Q And --

A | didn't take the absol ute nunber that
was determned at that facility and say this is what
t he demand woul d be here.

| related it to the nunber of beds,
devel oped the ratio and applied it to the nunber of
beds at the Haymarket facility.

Q Well, do you know if the services
provided to patients in those 79 beds at Wodri dge
Interventions is the sane as what's going to be

offered to patients at Haymar ket DuPage?

A. |"'mnot -- I'"mnot certain that they --
they do offer all the -- all the services.
Q Do you know if the clientele serviced by

Whodri dge Interventions is the sane denographic, age,
gender as that to be serviced at Haymar ket DuPage?

A. Again, | don't know the answer to that.
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Q Did you know t hat Wodri dge
| nterventions services adol escents, not just adults?

A Yes. | -- | found that out, yes.

Q Did you know that M. Dom nik, who is
Haymar ket's public safety inpact expert, has said
that facilities serving adol escents are not simlar

enough to use as a conp for the proposed Haymar ket

facility?

A | did not know that, no.

MR, ELLENBECKER: That's all | have. Thank
you.

CHAl RMAN DALY: Thank you, M. ElIl enbecker.
M. D Nolfo, would you like to
begi n your cross-exam nation?
MR DI NOLFO M. Chairman, | have no
guestions based on M. ElIlenbecker's cross.
CHAI RMAN DALY: Thank you.
Ms. Smth, do you have any
guestions on behalf of the School D strict?
M5. SMTH. Yeah, | do have just a few.
Thank you. Just one second.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY Ms. SM TH:
Q You indicated -- or testified that you
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were not aware that Pace bus 616 is no | onger
oper ati ng.
Are there any other -- have you
reviewed your report for any other -- well, can you

confirm agai n, when was your report drafted?

A August of | ast year.

Q And particularly in |light of the changes
with COVID, have you reviewed your report to see if
there's any other material changes that have occurred
inthe -- in all the variables that you | ooked at
that were significant to your report?

A | nmean, the only variable has been -- is
the lower traffic count on the roadways.

Q Well, one variable was the bus route
that you cited is no longer in operation; right?

A Right, but like I indicated earlier, we
did not assune any reductions in the auto traffic --
autonobile traffic that woul d be generated by the
site to -- you know, that people would be utilizing
the Pace bus stop or the Pace service.

Q But you would -- but so you have or
haven't taken a | ook and updated your report
fol |l ow ng COVI D?

A Ckay, what -- so you have to be specific
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in terns of what would COVID i npact?

Q Well, you testified that one inpact was
you said there was a bus route that no longer is in
exi stence.

Did you | ook at your report to see
i f there has been any other inpacts?

A | have not specifically | ooked. Like
| -- like | said earlier, the thing that we're
finding out since COVIDis the traffic volunes --
| evel s on these roadways is |lower than pre-COVID. It
woul d be | ess people --

Q Wl |, have you --

A. -- less people driving than before.
Q Are you saying that generally or have
you | ooked specifically at the -- the data that you

took for these sites?
A. Wll, | nean, we've done dozens and

dozens of studies throughout the Chicago area and

we - -
Q But for this site. | didn't ask about
other. | said have you | ooked at this site?
A Yeah, | understand. Can | finish ny
answer ?

Q Not if it's not responsive. |'m asking
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for this site, have you | ooked at whether COVID has
i npacted the traffic?

A. | would expect if we did, it would be
consistent with what we have found at dozens of other
| ocati ons throughout the Chicago area.

Q You indicated that the assunptions that
you were given were based on Haynmarket's experience
at the current facility; correct?

A |"massumng it is. | didn't ask. This
Is what they have given ne.

Q Ckay. So you don't -- you don't have
any idea what the assunptions were based on?

A. Again, | would -- | would anticipate
it's based on their experience running their existing
facility and their anticipation of what the staffing
| evel s woul d be here, too.

Q kay. And are -- are you famliar wth
the rate of honel essness of the residents at the
current facility?

A That's not relevant to ny -- ny
experti se.

Q kay. And as far as owni ng vehicles or
being able to afford vehicle transportation, did they

gi ve you any information about how they anticipate
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DuPage woul d vary fromthe Chicago site?
A No.
M5. SMTH. Ckay. No other questions. Thank

you.
CHAI RMAN DALY: Thank you, Ms. Smth.
M5. OKEEFE: |'d like to take five m nutes,
I f we could, before we -- before we do redirect.

Wul d that be acceptabl e?
CHAI RVAN DALY: Yeah, that's fine. Let's
reconvene at 8:05. Pl ease.
M5. O KEEFE: Thank you very nuch
(Recess taken.)
CHAI RMAN DALY: This is Chairman Daly. Are
you ready to begin your redirect?
M5. O KEEFE: | am Thank you, M. Chairnan
You know, | was -- | junped right in there and I
wanted to make sure the Plan Conm ssion didn't have
any questions before | redirected. | mght have
m ssed a step there.
Are there any questions that we

shoul d address there and then turn to ny redirect?

CHAI RMVAN DALY: | woul d ask Counsel Hervas.
| do have questions on behalf of the Commssion. |I'm
sure the Comm ssioners do, as well. So | woul d defer
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to Chuck to guide us on whether you begin your
redirect or we begin with our questions.

MR. HERVAS. Can you hear ne all?

CHAI RMAN DALY:  Yes.

MR HERVAS. Bridget -- or Ms. O Keefe, I'm
sorry, do you want to do your redirect based on the
attorney questions or do you want to wait until the
Pl an Comm ssion may ask questions because there may
be -- | don't know how many questions the Pl an
Comm ssion has, and so that's up to you.

M5. OKEEFE: | can wait. That's okay.

MR. HERVAS. Al right, that would be fine.

CHAl RVAN DALY: Ckay. | would now open the
guestions to the Conm ssi oners.

Do any of the Conmm ssioners have
any questions about this evening's discussion or
previously submtted material s?

Anyone?

COW SSI ONER RAY: This is Comm ssioner Ray.
| do not.

CHAl RVAN DALY: Ckay, then I will -- 1 wll
ask a few questions. This is Chairman Daly.

M . Aboona, we appreciate you being

here this evening and your report and your di scussion
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wi th the attorneys.

| want to reach back to the
previously submtted exhibit, if | nmay, because it
was submtted into the record fromJuly of 2019, and
the reason is, | want to know if any information from
that report flowed into the newreport, and if so, if
It had any i npact.

So on page 13...

And, Mo, if you could pull this up
fromthe last report, if possible please.

The context of the question as he's
pulling it upis: Previously submtted there was the
devel opnent of traffic generation where the
information fromthe Wodridge Interventions'
traffic-generated volunes were laid out in three
col ums: Wekday norning peak hour in and out;
weekday eveni ng peak hour -- excuse ne, weekday
nor ni ng; then weekday eveni ng; and then weekday
t wo- way.

And based on a 79-bed facility,
there were, it appears to be, traffic counts for
each, and then a ratio was applied based on that
traffic nunber.

And |'Il wait for Mo to pick this

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com

Page 60




© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN THE MATTER OF: HAYMARKET DUPAGE, LLC
Report of Proceedings - 01/06/2021 Page 61

up now because | want to nmake sure | get the nmath
right on this.

So while he's doing that, 'l
actually ask a separate question, and |I'll cone back
to that in the interest of tinme because I'd like to
hear from M. Dom nik again this evening, as well.

M. Aboona, is there -- in your
traffic study, does energency service vehicle play
any role in the -- not necessarily the traffic count,
but the inpact on traffic itself; basically
interruptions to traffic, whether it's tripping the
lights at the signalized intersections with the
energency strobes or, | don't know, just trying to
turn left on to Irving Park Road in a non-signalized
I ntersection?

Coul d you shed sone |ight on that
for nme, please?

MR. ABOONA:  Well, | nean, you nornmally, you
know, | ook from a design standpoint to nake sure that
these intersections are able to accomobdate these
type of vehicles, be it energency vehicles, bikes,
trucks, and the like. And, you know, fromthat
st andpoi nt, yeah, the intersections surrounding the

site, the access to the facility can accommobdat e
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t hat .

In ternms of interruptions to the
traffic because of these energency vehicles, | nean,
that happens all the tine. It doesn't necessarily
have to be related to this site. It could be
anyt hi ng el se.

So it happens, and when it happens,
you know, there wll be an interruption, and if there
Is a preenption, obviously that wll -- will cause
sone delay, but, you know, it nornalizes very quickly
after that.

Soit's -- it's factored in. It's
part of normal operations for the -- for the
I ntersections.

CHAl RMAN DALY: Ckay, thank you for that.

s there any -- the driving
habits -- and | think this was touched on a little
bit by the attorneys earlier, but the patterns in the
original report --

And, M, if you could pick that up

now, please, I'd like to go to that. So on page

13 -- it mght have been PDF Page 15, but it was
their nunber -- yeah, there No. 13 on the bottom So
hit 15.
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VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN: (I ndicating.)

CHAI RVAN DALY: Ckay, thank you. Ckay,
scroll down.

VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN: (I ndicating.)

CHAl RMAN DALY: Al right. So I just want to
understand, did the information from Table 2 and
Tabl e 3 sonehow get entered into your sinulation data
that ended up in the appendi x which gave you your
ultimte results?

MR. ABOONA: | cannot see this table. [|I'm
not sure what report you're referring to. |Is this
t he August report that was submtted as --

CHAI RMAN DALY: No, no, no. This was the
July 2019 report. And | know this is not current,
but |'m asking a question to see if it flowed into
the current report.

MR, ABOONA: Yeah, | can't see it. | don't
have the report in front of nme, so |I'mnot sure...

CHAI RVAN DALY: Oh, I'msorry. M is -- M
Is trying to share it. If you could see the Vill age
screen here in a second.

VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN. M. Aboona, do you see
It now?

M5. O KEEFE: M. Chairman, just to clarify,
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when the app for -- further wise recollection is the
application was filed originally in July '19, and an
initial traffic report was submtted as part of that,
and this is -- this docunent cones fromthat traffic
report that was filed in July 2019 as conpared to the
second traffic report, the updated traffic report
that was submtted in August 2020; correct?

CHAI RVAN DALY:  Yes, ma'am | understand
t hat .

And | guess what |'m-- what |I'm
ultimately driving tois | find an error in the math
on Tables 2 and 3.

So what I"'mtrying to understand
Is, did the error in the math on Table 3 end up in
the SiIMdata in the end of the current traffic report
or not?

MR ABOONA: No. W -- ny -- the -- the
August report is based on the data that was provi ded
by Haymarket. So the nodeling was based on that.

CHAI RVAN DALY: Ckay. So none of this trying
to equate and scal e up the Haymarket nunbers based on
t he Wbodridge Interventions nunbers, you're saying
that is irrelevant now on the current report?

MR. ABOONA: Yes. That was not -- yes. That
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was not applied in the current report, correct.
CHAI RVAN DALY: Ckay. Thank you for that
clarification.

The other thing | noticed in the
current report in the end -- let ne pull it back up.

So, Mo, could you pl ease
present --
VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN: (I ndicating.)
CHAI RVAN DALY: |'m | ooking at Table 5 on
their sheet No. 22.

Just so | understand, M. Aboona --
and | was never good at the traffic part of civil
engi neering nyself, so I'mgoing to defer to your
expertise here, but on the westbound |eft turn onto
the Rohlwi ng Road -- so this would have been the
sixth bullet down, the first bullet under Rohlw ng
and Hawt horn -- it |looks |like we're going froma
| evel service Dand E in the current condition --

And, Mo, can you go to the next
screen, please, scroll down one.
VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN: (I ndicating.)
CHAI RVAN DALY: It |looks Iike we |ose the
| evel of service froma Dto an E on the weekday

nor ni ng peak hour for the westbound turn | ane.
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Is that -- is that -- am|
understanding that correctly, that once Haymar ket
woul d start generating trips, that there is a
decrease in that |evel of service?

MR ABOONA: So let ne -- let ne just take a
| ook at here.

So Table 5 is existing conditions,
and Table 6 is future. So it does go fromDto E

Just so that you know, the
threshold is 55 seconds -- 35 seconds. So currently
it's at 34.7, so it's just a tad under the threshold.

So the increase and the | evel of
service noving to Eis conbination of the traffic
from Haymarket as well as the growth that we assuned
I n the background traffic conditions. So it's not
solely all Haymarket traffic.

CHAl RVAN DALY: Ckay. And then | guess the
sane expl anation would then be for the east.

So scrolling, the site access
Mapl ewood Drive -- the last group of novenents,
you' ve got site access Mapl ewood Drive and Spring
Lake Drive. The eastbound left turn lane is at an A
in the current condition. In the future that would

drop to a B.
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It | ooks like there's a second
addi tional delay there?

MR ABOONA:  Yes.

CHAI RVAN DALY: But that is -- so what |I'm
under standi ng, then, is you're stating or testifying
that it's not only the inpact of the Haynmarket
traffic, but it's also the informati on you m ght have
received from CVAP, for exanple, on traffic
projections in the region in the future years in the
2040 plan and things of that nature?

MR. ABOONA: Yes. Yeah, we always factor in
that to account for other roads. So it's not just
| ooking at this in a vacuum

CHAI RMAN DALY: Ckay. | think I have one
ot her question if you'll bear wwth nme for a second,
pl ease.

So with a use of this nature, which
| think | heard you say earlier it's kind of hard to
cl assify because it doesn't exist in the |ITA
cl assifications and whatnot, but, you know, the
existing use was a -- a hotel, which does have ot her
events and things of that nature, and, you know, full
room occupancy for the purposes of cal cul ation, and

access, and IDOT permtting and whatnot, but, you
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know, given now that we've got what | would presune
to be sonewhat of a partial stable popul ation during
the day where cars wll cone in in the norning and

| eave in the evening and then there are other cars
that will stay overnight, is there any sort of -- |I'm
trying to think of the right way to ask this.

We had a prior witness testify
that, you know, Haymarket -- the enployees and the
peopl e visiting Haymarket were going to generate a
| ocal benefit to the community because they're
spendi ng noney in our restaurants, and they're going
out for coffee, and they're going to go eat |unch and
t hi ngs of that nature.

So is there any sort of calcul ation
I n your software or otherw se where there's
additional trips during nealtinmes or break tines that
aren't part of the show up in the norning and | eave
I n the evening cal cul ati on?

MR. ABOONA: | nean, not -- not specifically
tothat. | nean, it could -- it could happen, so
there may be sone additional increase, but | don't
think it's going to be significant to nove the needle
in terns of the inpact, and especially if it occurs

during off peak hours.
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You know, in our analysis, we
normal |y | ook at peak hours because that's when the
bi ggest inpact is going to be felt, because the
traffic on the roadway systemis the highest, and
that's why you see all the analysis is focused on the
nmor ni ng and eveni ng.

Soif -- if there is fluctuation
during the rest of the hours of the day, you know,
the capacity on the roadway system there is
additional reserve capacity to be able to absorb any
of that inpact.

CHAI RVAN DALY: Ckay, so let ne ask this a
different way just so | understand.

The hunps during the day, the peaks
are going to be in the norning when people are going
to work and in the evening when they | eave to go
honme, general ly?

MR, ABOONA: Ri ght.

CHAI RVAN DALY: The hunp that happens at noon
when everybody rushes out to go to |unch between noon
and 1:00, are you then saying that that peak is |ower
than the go to work in the norning and go hone at
ni ght ?

MR. ABOONA: Yes. Yes, absolutely.
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CHAI RVAN DALY: Okay. So it's -- it's
covered, | would say, in layman's terns, because it's

not pushing the threshold on the traffic?

MR. ABOONA: Yeah. | nean, whenever --
whenever we do these type of studies and it's
reviewed by review ng agencies, you know, |ike |DOT,
and DuPage County DOTs and the like, | nmean, that's
the focus, is to |look at these critical peak hours,
because once you're able to show that the inpact is

mtigated and the roadway system can function, then,

you know -- then you know that the rest of the day
when the traffic levels are lower -- and it nay go up
and down, |ike you said, during lunchtinme dependi ng

where you are, but they're all going to be still
| oner than what you woul d experience in the norning
and eveni ng.

CHAl RMAN DALY: Ckay, thank you for that.

And since you brought up |IDOT and

DuPage County Transportation, | just want to ask the
question: Through the permt application process,
have -- has your report been submtted to any
review ng agencies at this tine?

MR. ABOONA: It has not.

CHAl RMAN DALY: GCkay. And from an | DOT
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perspective, would they have jurisdiction on this as
there are no curb cuts on Illinois 19 but you're
Wi thin a certain distance of the highway?

MR ABOONA: IDOT normally, if there is a
reusabl e property or redevel opnent of a property, if
the intensity of the use changes where there is an
I ncrease or marked increase in traffic, they would
want to see what that inpact would entail.

Gven that in this instance that
the traffic, there would be a reduction in traffic as
conpared to a hotel, then, you know, it's unlikely
that they would consider this to be inpactful.

CHAI RMAN DALY: Ckay. And then as far as
DuPage County DOT goes, do they have any jurisdiction
inthis matter given that you're in an incorporated
town with Itasca and it would fall to Itasca's
engineering firmto do the review of the application?

MR. ABOONA: Yeah. | nean, they -- | nean,
we're not abutting a DuPage County hi ghway so they
don't have the need to revi ew anything.

CHAI RVAN DALY: Gkay. | have no further
gquestions. | appreciate your answers.

Ms. O Keefe, | would hand it back

over to you.
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M5. O KEEFE: Thank you, M. Chairman. |

just have a few questions for M. Aboona.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY M5. O KEEFE

Q So, M. Aboona, just to kind of follow
up on your last comment, to follow up on what the
Chairman said and reiterate, you feel that the inpact
of the proposed use is going to be |less intense than
a hotel just because of a |ess nunber of cars going
in and out, and the less ancillary activities that
woul d be occurring on-site; |ess weddings, |ess
activities, you know, going to the restaurants, |ess
conferences, et cetera.

Overall, you feel this use would be
| ess intense and would be | ess significant than the
use that was previously there?

A Yes, that's correct. There will be a
| esser -- less traffic generated and will be | ess
I npact, correct.

Q Ckay. So there's going to be 240 beds
at the facility; correct?

A Yes.

Q And only 10 percent of the -- of the

residents -- of the recovery hone residents are going
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to be allowed to drive, which is approximately 13
cars?

A. Yes.

Q So if you're -- so you're assunption is
based on the fact that 237 residents are not going to
have cars or be able to drive at the facility?

A That's correct.

Q And your report stated that people --
that in terns of comng and going fromthe site, they
are going to be arriving at the site either through
transport -- vehicular transport by friends, famly,

t he vans, Ubers, et cetera; correct?

A. Yes.

Bridget, you're fading in and out
so I'mnot able to hear everything clearly.

Q Ckay. Can you hear ne now?

A Yeah, nuch better.

Q Ckay. So your report -- just to confirm
your report in terns of how the residents are going
to arrive and |l eave the facility, they are going to
arrive and | eave either by people dropping themoff;
famly, friends, Uber, or the vans that woul d be
oper ated by Haymarket --

A. Yes.
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Q -- because they won't have cars?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. The enployees that will be
on-site will be the primary people driving to the
facility; correct?

A Yes.

Q And they have three shifts: 7:00 to
3:00, 3:00 to 11:00, 11:00 to 7:00; correct?

A Correct.

Q And t he peak hours of when they arrive
and | eave are off peak -- they don't match up with
t he peak hours on the road; correct?

A Except the norning, you know, the
7:00 AM-- 7:00 to 8:00, and that's why we make the
assunption they would be arriving during that hour.

Q But typically they'll arrive before

7:00 --

A. Yes.

Q -- because that's when their shift
starts?

A Yeah. So we're -- we're probably a
little bit conservative on -- on that assunption.

Q Ckay. One last question. W talked
about ITE and I TE being the primary neans that you
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use to cal cul ate parking demand, and that there is no
specific classification for substance or treatnent
facilities in ITE

So when you did your report, which
Is on Table 7, page 27, you reference | TE peak
par ki ng demand, and what you studi ed was the
classifications that were provided by the Village.
They were the ones who asked you to look at this from
t hat perspective; correct?

A Yes. We |looked at it fromthat
conservative approach, both using ITE as well as the
Vil |l age code requirenents.

Q So it's -- in your opinion, there is
nore than enough parking on-site to neet the need?

A. Usi ng bot h net hodol ogi es, yes.

M5. O KEEFE: That's all | have. Thank you,
Chai rman Dalvy.

CHAI RVAN DALY: M. El Il enbecker or
M. DiNolfo or Ms. Smth, do you have any foll ow up
guestions?

MR, ELLENBECKER: | -- this is Ellenbecker.
Yeah, we have a couple foll ow ups, M. Chairnman.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ELLENBECKER:
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Q M. Aboona, just -- Ms. O Keefe asked

you a question premsed with the phrase -- prefaced

with the phrase only 10 percent of patients would be

al lowed to drive.

Are you aware of a policy at
Haymar ket DuPage that restricts the nunber of
allotted drivers to 10 percent of the patient
popul ation?

M5. O KEEFE: To clarify what | said,

M. Ellenbecker, | believe | said 10 percent of the
patients would be allowed to have cars.

MR. ELLENBECKER: Ckay, well, I"Il ask it
t hat way.

BY MR ELLENBECKER:

Q Are you aware of a policy at Haynmarket
DuPage that limts the nunber of patients who can
have cars at the facility to 10 percent?

A. "' mnot aware of a policy, but that's
the information that was provided, so | assune that
woul d be their expectations of what's going to
happen.

Q Did Ms. Kissel or Ms. O Keefe provide
you the criteria by which Haynmarket residents are

permtted to have a car?
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A. | have not seen that, no.
Q You were asked sone questions about the

decrease in events at the proposed facility from when
it was used as a hotel, but Dr. Lustig has
represented to us and the conmmunity that this
facility would be opened to church and community
events at the facilities.

D d Haymar ket provide you with any
information or info wth regard to what the comunity

and church events being hosted at the facility would

gener at e?
A | was not given that information, but if
| have to guess, |I'm-- it's probably not going to be

as frequent as events that occurred at the hotel.

Q And that's purely a guess; correct?

A. Yes.

Q Ckay. And lastly, M. Chairnmn asked
you sonme questions about a prelimnary report or the
initial report in July of 2019, and you generated a
nunber of in and out traffic on a daily basis for the
proposed facility using the Wodridge |Interventions
as a conparison; correct?

A Yes.

Q And when you did that, based on a
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230-bed estimate at Haymar ket -- proposed Haymar ket
facility, you determ ned that the in-out daily was
437 cars at the proposed facility; correct?

A | -- 1 don't have it in front of me, but
| -- 1 -- it's probably around that nunber, vyes.

Q And then just a little bit over a year
| ater adding 10 beds, so we're now up to 240 beds,
you' ve now decreased that estimte by 240 cars per
day down to 197; correct?

A Well, this updated report, it was based
nore on the informati on that was provi ded by
Haymar ket that woul d be nore representative what the
operations would be at the facility.

Q Right. So your count facility yielded a
nunber of 437, but an August 6, 2020, report
gener ated based entirely on the reliance of nunbers
provi ded by Haymar ket reduced the daily traffic | oad
by 240 cars in and out; correct?

A. Agai n, based on information that was
provi ded by Haymar ket independent of what we -- what

was observed at the Wodridge facility.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ckay. That's all | have.
Thank you, M. Aboona. | appreciate your tine.
M5. SMTH. | have no further questions.

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com




© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN THE MATTER OF: HAYMARKET DUPAGE, LLC
Report of Proceedings - 01/06/2021

Page 79

MR DI NOLFO M. Chairman, | just have a
couple of clarifications, if | may.

CHAl RMAN DALY: Pl ease proceed.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR DI NOLFQO

Q Very briefly, just touching on where we
| eft off, your 2019 report that you submtted you
submtted to the standard in which you submtted the
report in August of 2000, correct -- or 2020, |
shoul d say? R ght? Your best professional opinion
was back in July of 2019 that there would be 437 in
and out; correct?

A At that tine, yes.

Q And you woul d have been willing to cone
in and testify to that based on you bei ng desi gnat ed
as an expert to that nunber; correct?

A Based on the information that we had at
that tinme, yes.

Q And you felt confortabl e enough, based
on the information you had at that tine, to generate
a report that's part of the record; correct?

A Yes.

Q Al right. And now a year l|later after

Haymar ket provided you with information -- and you
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woul d agree with ne that Haymarket has an interest in
getting this proposal passed; correct?
A. | have no opinion on that.
Q Well, you would agree with nme they don't
want it denied? That wouldn't nmake sense, would it?
A Again, I'm-- | have no opinion on that.
Q Ckay. So the data that they provided,
you agree with ne, you did nothing other than rely on
it, with no personal investigation, to determ ne the

validity of that; correct?

A | nmean, | had discussions with themto
under st and, you know, the -- the nunbers, but | -- |
didn't -- | didn't go into the assunptions, no.

Q So, in essence, you relied on the party

who has an interest in the outcone here, their data,
to drive down the nunber by 240; correct?

A | relied on the data that was given to
me, yes.

Q Ckay. And the nunber of vehicles that
you can expect to be comng in and out, at |east back
in 2019, you were confortable would be 437 each way,
but based on this data which you have no backup for
ot her than just what people told you; it's 197.

Does that in any way bother you
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that you didn't do due diligence on the very data
that you used to reduce the nunber by 2407

A. | -- I relied on -- on Haymarket given
their expertise and know edge of their operations,
that, you know -- that these nunbers are
representative of this facility.

Q And the last thing I want to touch on is
just on the nunber of people that woul d be com ng and
going from Haymarket. And Ms. O Keefe clarified that
it was 10 percent that would be on a daily basis, |
t hi nk, com ng and goi ng.

You woul d agree with ne that your
decision to rely on that is just based solely on what
Haymar ket told you; correct?

A. Again, this is based on the data they
gave nme, Yyes.

Q You didn't go over to the Wodridge
facility and ask them hey, how many people do have
com ng and going on a daily basis to determ ne the
percentage, did you?

A | did not, and | doubt that they would
have answered my question.

Q Ckay. And to your know edge, and if you

know, has Haymarket ever run a suburban facility
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simlar to what they're proposing here in Itasca?

A. | don't believe so.

Q You woul d agree with ne the only
facility they have is | ocated downtown near the |oop
inthe Gty of Chicago, the West Loop?

A West Loop, yes, that's correct.

MR. DI NOLFO Okay. | have nothing further.
Thank you.

M5. O KEEFE: M. Chairman, | just have one
fol |l owup questi on.

CHAI RVAN DALY: Yes, mm' am pl ease proceed.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY M5. O KEEFE

Q M. Aboona, there's been discussions of
the nunbers that were presented in 2019 and those
nunbers, as were pointed out, were higher than were
presented in 2020; correct?

A. Yes.

Q And you felt in your professional
experi ence, having spent 30 years in the field and
doi ng countl ess reports, that the operation of the
facility at those nunbers in 2019 had no adverse
I npact on the | ocal roadway network, the operation of

the intersections, or the traffic flows in the area;
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correct?
A. That's correct.
Q So upon provision of nore detailed

I nformati on from Haymar ket whi ch was devel oped over
time, the nunbers were reduced, that just neans the
I npact is even less than it was and woul d work even
better than you originally anticipated; correct?

A Correct.

M5. O KEEFE: Okay. No further questions.

CHAl RVAN DALY: Thank you. At this point in
time I'd ask that Ms. O Keefe present M. Dom ni k as
your next w tness.

And, please, | didn't hear if the
court reporter swore himin at the begi nning when she
swore in M. Aboona.

THE REPORTER: | did not.

M5. O KEEFE: M. Chairman, can we -- can we
excuse M. Aboona at this point?

CHAI RVAN DALY: Yes. Pl ease.

M5. O KEEFE: Thank you, M. Aboona. W
appreci ate your tinme very nuch.

THE WTNESS: Thank you. Have a good
eveni ng.

THE REPORTER: | did not swear in the --
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M. Dom ni k.
CHAI RVAN DALY: Pl ease proceed.
(Janmes Dom ni k sworn.)
CHAl RVAN DALY: Ckay. | believe when we | ast

left off we were in the m ddle of cross-exam nation
by the interested parties' attorneys, so pl ease
pr oceed.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Thank you, M. Chairnman.
believe we were in the mddle of ny
cross-examnation, so I'll pick up if that's okay.

Mo, are you able to bring up
Haymar ket's new Exhi bit No. 497

VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN:  You said 49; correct?

MR. ELLENBECKER: Yes, pl ease.

VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN: One second.

CHAI RVAN DALY: It's a new one that we have
just for today.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Yeah, Ms. O Keefe sent it,
| think, one or two days ago.

MS. OKEEFE: | sent it on, | think, |ast
Thur sday.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Ch, okay, al nbst a week
ago. Sorry.

M5. OKEEFE: | try to be pronpt.
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VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN: M. El | enbecker, it's

a traffic study report, correct, a traffic study
I npact ?
MR, ELLENBECKER: No. W could --
VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN: | apol ogi ze.
MR, ELLENBECKER: No, that's all right.
M5. O KEEFE: Mo, this is Shannon. Do you
have Qutl ook open? | just forwarded the exhibit.
VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN: It's a CARF letter;
correct?
MR, ELLENBECKER: It is the CARF letter of
Decenber 3rd, 2020.
VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN: Just give ne one
second, pl ease.
MR DI NOLFO W have it here if we can
share this screen.
VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN: Do you have it now?
MR, ELLENBECKER: Hang on one second.
Yes, that's it.
RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ELLENBECKER:
Q First of all, M. Domnik, nice to see
you agai n.

Are you ready to proceed?
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A Yes, sir.

Q Ckay. Up on the screen right nowis a
Decenber 30th, 2020, letter. It looks like it's on
CARF International |etterhead. Have you seen this
docunent that Haymarket has previously marked as
Exhi bit 49 before just seeing it now?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Wien did you first see the
Decenber 30th letter from M. Johnson at CARF?

A Just recently. | did not wite down the
date | sawit.

Q Ckay. Did you reach out to M. Johnson
yoursel f?

A M. Ell enbecker, | had nothing to do
wth this letter.

Q Ckay. Do you know why this |etter was
solicited from M. Johnson?

A | had nothing to do with that. You
could ask Dr. Lustig or Ms. O Keefe that questi on.

Q Well, you recall last tinme you and
spoke before the holidays you and | were talking
about CARF International's database and whether it
was possible for you to have searched out-of-state

facilities to find adequate conp facilities; correct?
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A. | believe you were tal king about it,
yes.

Q Yeah. And did you -- since you and |
| ast spoke in the context of cross-exam nation, did
you do any inquiry of CARF International's website to
det er m ne whet her you could, by ASAM | evel or any
other nmeans, to try to find conp facilities outside
the State of Illinois?

A As | indicated previously,
M. Ellenbecker, | had nothing to do with the letter.
You woul d have to ask, you know, soneone el se about
t hat .

Q No, no, ny question was outside the
scope of the letter, M. Dom nik.

" m saying since the last tinme you
and | spoke, did you go and try to find conp
facilities using the CARF International database of
t he providers?

A No, | did not.

Q Ckay. Was it ever suggested to you by
Dr. Lustig to possibly contact CARF and see if you
could work with themto find conparable facilities in
size outside of the State of IIlinois?

A No.
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Q Ckay. Wien you and | concl uded | ast
tine we were trying to find -- or I was trying to
find, wwth Mo's help, a chart that was in your
report.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Mo, if you -- if you could
take this down and get to the Polaris report, please,
and specifically charts 27 and 28 of the Polaris
report.

M5. O KEEFE: Are we tal king about page 29 of
the Itasca Fire Protection District Exhibit 16, just
to make sure we're on the sane page?

MR. ELLENBECKER: Yes, we are, page 29.

M5. O KEEFE: (kay.

MR, ELLENBECKER: And it's page 28 of the
actual report.

M5. O KEEFE: Ckay. Thank you
BY MR ELLENBECKER:

Q So, M. Dom nik, can you -- can you see
chart 277
A Yes, sir.

Q And based on chart 27, underneath that
chart it says the daily EMS/ALS inpact is .01 to .02
calls per day; correct?

A. Yes.
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Q Does that nean that you're suggesting
that this 240-bed facility with 96 treatnent beds,
including level 3.7 detox would only yield one call
to Itasca EMS every 100 days?

A So, M. Ellenbecker, that chart is for

t he recovery hone beds.

Q Ckay.
A. The one below it 1s for the treatnent
hone beds.

Q kay. Well, so let's start with the

recovery room

Is it your testinony that the 144
recovery beds, sone of which are still undergoing
I ntensive outpatient treatnent, would only yield
approximately one call to Itasca EMS every hundred
days?

A Correct.

Q kay. And if we go to chart 28, this is
what you were tal king about, the treatnent center;
correct?

A Correct.

Q And it's your testinony here, based on
this chart, that the inpact or the nunber of calls to

ltasca's EM5 as a result of the 96 treatment beds
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woul d yield only one call every 33 days or so?

A Correct.

Q And how does that rate conpare with the
nunmber of EMS/ ALS calls generated by Haynarket's West
Loop treatnent beds?

A As we had indicated earlier, that site
coul d not use the data, so there was no conpari son.

Q Ckay.

MR, ELLENBECKER: Al right, M, if you could
keep that up and go to page 15 of the report, which |
believe is page 16 in the Fire Protection District's
exhi bit.

VI LLAGE PLANNER KHAN: (I ndicating.)

MR. ELLENBECKER: Yeah, chart 7.

Ckay, thank you.
BY MR ELLENBECKER:

Q These are -- would it be accurate to say
that these facilities listed on chart 7 of the
Polaris report are the conps or the conparable

facilities that you used for purposes of your

anal ysi s?
A Correct.
Q And are you aware that for purposes of

its presentation to the Conm ssion and the public
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t hat Haynmar ket used Cornell Interventions as a conp
facility?

A | did not use Cornell Interventions;
correct.

Q Ri ght, but are you aware that Haynarket
inits presentation in its PowerPoint used Cornell
| nterventions as a conp facility?

A | believe in one of the PowerPoints I
did see that.

Q Do you know -- in discussions wth
Haymar ket, did you have any di scussions about why
Haymar ket personnel used Cornell Interventions and
you did not?

A | did not.

Q And you agreed, though, | think, the
last tinme that these 11 conps and the accuracy of
their conps, apples to apples, oranges to oranges,
drove your answers in this case; correct?

A. Chart 7 conparabl es, yes.

Q And | apologize if | rehash sone of this
stuff. Just to lay sone context for sone of ny
questions, | do need to go through sone background
that we covered last tine.

You agree that none of the conps on
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your facility by thensel ves are conparable to the
proposed Haynmar ket DuPage facility; correct?

A No. | believe they're all conparable
due to the fornmula we used to project the data by
capacity.

Q Right. So let's set aside your
projections. For instance, Serenity House Naperville
I's nowhere near the size of the proposed Haynarket
facility; correct?

A | think that's irrel evant.

Q Wel |, answer nmy question. W'IIl let the
Comm ssion determ ne whether it's rel evant.

So woul d you agree that Serenity
House Naperville is nowhere near the size of the
proposed Haymarket facility? Right?

A The bed capacity is not the sane size,

i f that's what you're asking.

Q Right. And the treatnent beds al one,
they don't even offer treatnent at Serenity House;
right?

A Correct.

Q And we could go through each one on the
list but we won't.

Do you know how many patients per
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year -- not the nunber of beds, but do you know how
many patients per year each of these facilities
service?

A No. That was not what we used for our
proj ecti ons.

Q Wul d you agree that if a facility
services 5,000 or 4,800 a year, that's going to have
different public safety needs than a facility that
has the sane five people living init for 12 nonths?

A M. Ellenbecker, that's data that was
not available for the purposes of the study.

Q Ckay. But -- and | get all of that.

But would you agree that a facility that has a
turnover in the beds that's going to treat, say,
4,800 patients annually woul d have different needs
and expectations of public safety services than a
facility that has the sane five people living in the
recovery beds?

A. | believe the questionis alittle
deeper dependi ng on what | evel of services they were
going to provide. There's nore to the question, |
bel i eve, sir.

Q Right. And | guess where | was goi ng
with this, M. Domnik, is the way the proposed
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Haymar ket facility has been explained -- and, you
know, | think Dr. Lustig explained what the nodel
was -- there's going to be turnover in certain beds
at the Haymarket facility.

Did you incorporate the turnover
t hose beds, in other words, the nunber of patients
t hat woul d occupy those 240 beds per year?

A. The data obviously by the nunber of
patients was unavail able, so we used the bed count
assum ng that would be consistent. W assuned a
hundred percent capacity for all sites.

Q Do you know i f that assunption was
rooted in actuality or if it was an assunption you
needed to do for your study purposes?

A. Coul d you rephrase that question, sir?

Q Your assunption using just the bed
counts, do you know if that was based on the
actuality of the treatnent nodels and the patient
turnover or was it based on an assunption you j ust
needed to make to allow you to conduct the
assessnent ?

A W assunmed worst-case scenario, to be
nost conservati ve.

Q Well, is it worst-case scenario to

in
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assune that Haymarket DuPage is going to have 240
people annually in its 240 beds or 4,800 people going
in and out of the facility?

A. Like | said earlier, M. Ellenbecker, we
assuned a hundred percent capacity at all sites.

Q Ckay.

A. It was equal .

Q Well, but 4,800 is not the sane as
assum ng only 240 patients are going to be at a
facility over 12 nonths; correct? That's just nmath.

A It's just -- yeah, | don't -- | don't
agree, and | guess | don't understand your question.
|"mnot trying to be difficult.

Q No, no, | get that, but for purposes of
your study, you assuned that there would be a patient
I n 240 beds over the course of a year; correct?

A The sane turnover rate applied to all of
them | guess, if that's what you're asking.

Q But you don't know what the turnover
rate was at any of your 11 counts, do you?

A No, we did not take that into account.

Q And you' ve already agreed, | think, |ast
time that treatnent beds generate nore calls;

correct?
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A. Correct.
Q So if we were going to just focus on

conparable facilities based on the type of services
that generate the nost calls, your first seven conps
could be elimnated because they don't even offer
treatnment; correct?

A No. We applied the treatnent hone beds
to the treatnent hone beds, and the recovery hone
beds to the recovery hone beds, so all those are
needed to nmake an accurate projection.

Q And you'd agree that based on the
curmul ative totals of your facilities, it took 11
facilities to al nost equal the anmobunt of proposed
beds at the proposed Haymarket facility; correct?

A. No, | don't agree.

We used those sites to cone up wth
a per bed anal ysis based on their experience, and |
felt offering different sites would give a nore
robust, conplete anal ysis.

It wasn't trying to get to a bed
nunber. That wasn't the purpose.

Q Right. And naybe that wasn't your
purpose, but as | |look at chart 7 and | | ook at the

total bed count, you thought it inportant enough to
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list total bed count; correct?

A Sure, yes.

Q And the total beds for all 11 facilities
that you used as conps equals 237; correct?

A Correct.

Q And 237 is al nost, but not quite equal,

to 240 beds at the proposed facility; correct?

A. That -- it just purely ended up that
way.

Q Did you do any research to determ ne
what -- or whether there was any additive effect

based on the nunber of people or patients in a
facility and the potential inpact that would have on
the need for EMS services?

A. The data was inclusive of the address
for the total nunber of calls. So I don't know if
t hat answers your question or not, but it's inclusive
of all services provided to that address for the
entire study peri od.

Q No, | get that, and maybe | asked a poor
guesti on.

So, for instance, let's just take

one conp, Rosecrance Recovery Hone. |It's spread out

over four addresses, but you have 16 recovery beds
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conbi ned on those four addresses; correct?

A Correct.

Q And what |'masking is, did you do any
sort of research into whether only having four people
in a given facility or 240 peopl e under one roof
woul d have an additive effect in terns of the anount
of services needed from public safety services?

A. Sorry, M. Ellenbecker, I'"'mnot sure I'm

under st andi ng your |ine of questioning.

Q Yeah, so I'll try to think of an
exanpl e.
Soif -- if I"moperating a farm
right, and | have two cows, all right, I mght have

one observation, but if | have a farmand | have a
hundred cows, that sane facility, based on the pure
addi tion of 98 additional cows, could affect whatever
research |I'mdoing, right, whether it be spatial, the
nunber of fights between cows, whatever it m ght be,
okay.

Are you with ne? |'msaying, did
you do any research that denonstrated that purely
havi ng nore people, or patients in this case, could
affect the anmount of public safety services needed?

A. M. Ell enbecker, we took the bed count
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and then took the nunbers based on recovery hones and
treatnent honmes and then projected it based on that.

Q So it sounds like --

A Si npl e answer.

Q Yeah. So the sinple answer to ny
guestion is, you didn't do any research to determ ne
whet her sheer nunbers in a facility in excess of 200
woul d affect the needs of public safety services?

A | believe we did. No, | believe we did.
We | ooked at all the sites, all the uses. W broke
It down by treatnent honmes and recovery hones. W
| ooked at it over a period of time. W made accurate
proj ections based on the actual calls to those sites.

| believe that's very accurate
data, not including the cows.

Q Right. The largest facility you have in
your conps is 48 patients; correct?

A Correct.

Q And the facility proposed for Itasca is
240; correct?

A Correct.

Q And what |'masking is, did you do any
research to determ ne whether only having 48 patients

woul d have a decreased effect conpared to a facility
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that has 240 patients under one roof with regard to
the need for public safety services?

A W did. That was the whol e purpose of
the report, M. ElIlenbecker.

Q Right. And to equal 240 beds, you
needed to conbine 11 facilities --

A M. El Il enbecker --

Q -- right?

A -- we -- no, we used them all
I ndependently to identify calls per bed total.

Q Right. And one part -- and |I'mgetting
ahead of nyself, but one part of your cal cul ations
did a per bed analysis for each of your 11
facilities; correct?

A Correct.

Q Al right. And fromthat you were able
to get a per bed average fromeach of your 11
facilities; right?

A Correct.

Q And you used -- did you use any wei ghted
cal cul ation, for instance, to accommpdate or account
for the fact that one facility only had four patients
or people and another facility had 487

A. M. Ell enbecker, we assuned a hundred
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percent capacity at each site.

The patient nunbers was data that
was unavail able so we could not utilize patient
nunbers.

We took a very conservative
approach to project the nunbers based on the data
that was avail abl e and was consi stent.

Q Right. So, for instance, when you
generated the average for Serenity House Naperville
it yielded an average. Let's just say it was one
call per bed, okay. And for Leyden Fam |y Services,
for its 40 treatnent beds, you determ ned what that
average was; correct?

A. We | ooked at the total calls for the

site by the beds and then projected it based on those

nunber s.
Ri ght, so you get a per bed --
| think we've been through this.

Q
A
Q Well, just --
A

| think we've been through this earlier;

correct? W went through all this earlier and how I
did this, did we not?
Q Not with ne. So --

A You shoul d read the testinony.
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Q Well, if you answered ny questions,

M. Domnik, this would go a whol e | ot quicker.

So for --
A "' mtrying.
Q -- each of the 11 facilities you

determ ned a per bed average for calls; right?

A. Correct.

Q Al right. And | already asked you
about other | ocations.

Dr. Lustig has previously stated
that an ideal |ocation for the subject facility or a
subst ance use treatnent facility would be near a
hospital. D d you know that?

A. | believe | did read that, correct.

Q And if a facility is at or near a
hospital, would you agree that that can have an
I mpact on the nunber of calls to energency services?

A No, | believe that's irrel evant.

Q If there is a substance use treatnent
center within a hospital, do they need to call EMS to
nove that patient?

A It woul d depend on what type of hospital
It is.

Q Ckay. Are any of your conp facilities
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at hospital s?

A. W have sonme on the sane site or in
close proximty, but | believe this is conpletely
irrelevant. [It's a nedical transport,

M. Ellenbecker, so | don't knowif it really
makes -- in ny opinion it nmakes no difference.

Q Well, so ny question was, are any of
your conp facilities |located at a hospital ?

A Cl ose to.

Q Ckay. And did you do any inquiry of any
of these facilities that are close to hospitals to
determ ne what, if any, inpact it had on the need for
themto call EMS services?

A. No. They all called EMS services, all
the ones we utilized.

Q How do you know t hat ?

A From the data we saw.

Q Wel |, just because there was one --
there were a couple EMS calls doesn't nean as a
routi ne they needed EMS; correct?

A Well, if they're not located in a
hospital, yes, they would need to call EMS.

Q For instance, did you call Amta Health

that was | ocated on d oucester in Elk Gove -- did
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you call themup and ask them what their EMS protocol
1 S?

A. No, | did not.

Q Do you have any of the ALS/ BLS protocols
for any of your conp facilities?

A No, | do not.

Q You have agreed previously that recovery
hone data was not credible; correct?

A Could you -- I"'mnot sure | understand
when you' re asking the question about recovery hone
data not being credible.

Q Well, you indicated -- you testified
previously -- as you can see here, these are recovery
honme sites. You have the ALS nunber and the BLS
nunber. These nunbers | don't put a whole | ot of
credibility into because of the few nunber of calls
that the recovery hones generate. These --

A Yeah, I"'msorry. Yep. I|I'msorry, |
didn't -- | didn't understand your question so you
clarified that a little bit.

Yes, we had tal ked about that
previously, and the small nunber of calls are not
reflective of what | believe to be a true ALS/ BLS

conpari son nati onwi de or what we saw at sone of the
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| arger sites.

Q Ckay. | don't recall -- | thought | may
have asked you a simlar question last tine, but
you' d agree that none of your conp facilities offer
the full range of services that the proposed
Haymar ket facility does; correct?

A Like | said earlier, we tal ked about
this. | believe that's irrel evant based on the way
we projected the data based on recovery hone sites
and beds, and treatnent hone sites and beds.

Q Well, that may be, but do you know if
any of your 11 conps offer the full range of services
as those to be offered by Haymar ket DuPage?

A. No.

Q Were you provided any data with regard
to how many Haymar ket DuPage patients wll | eave the

facility daily?

A. No.
Q Do you know how the to and from
patterns -- or travel patterns of Haymarket DuPage

pati ent conpares to any of your conps?
A It's not in ny expertise, sir.
Q Did you make any inquiry into the

occupancy | evels of any of your 11 conps?
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A. No. W just purely | ooked at the data.

Q And did you -- specifically focusing on
the treatnent bed conps, the last four on chart 7,
did you call any representatives of Amta Health,

Gat eway Aurora, Heartland Banyan, or Leyden Famly
Services as part of your research in this matter?

A. No, | did not contact any of the people
fromthe facilities.

Q We discussed it just a bit ago, but you
did two calculations. One was on a ratio of calls to
beds, which we already discussed; right?

A Yes, sorry. Yep. Yep.

Q And the other part of your cal culation
was you based total calls over the nunber of
facilities; correct?

A Correct.

Q Who devel oped that statistical framework
for your study?

A. | believed it was the best way to do
this, to provide a range and an accurate projection.
| felt it was a very conservative approach. So |
devel oped that nysel f.

Q So maybe you just answered my question.

Did you devel op the statistical

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com

Page 106




© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN THE MATTER OF: HAYMARKET DUPAGE, LLC
Report of Proceedings - 01/06/2021 Page 107

framewor k of your study?

A. Yes.

Q Have you seen that statistical nethod
used before to determ ne the inpact on energency
services in the context of a | arge substance use
treatment center?

A. No.

Q Has your statistical nethod been
accepted as a reliable predictor of the inpact on
enmergency services in the context of substance use
treatment centers?

A | believe they woul d be.

Q Well, do you know if it has been, is ny
guesti on?

A. | don't -- through ny research |
couldn't find any that have been.

Q Ckay. To your know edge, would this be
the first study perfornmed using your statistical
nmet hod for eval uating the inpact on energency
services of a large scal e substance use treatnent
facility?

A None that | found.

Q Did you -- did you at all try -- well,

et me strike that.
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If | say or | use the term "power
of a study” -- do you know what |'mreferring to if
| -- if I refer to a termor a phrase called "power

of a study?"

A Power of a study, M. Ellenbecker?

Q Yes.

A. No.

Q For instance, sone would say -- if you

| ook at a parking |lot and there are four red cars
there and there are only two white cars, sone would
say, oh, well, they nust -- there nust be nore red
cars on the street, but you mght need to | ook at a
| arger sanple size to give that study sone power.
If | give that description, have

you heard the phrase "power of a study" used before?

A. No.

Q Did you do any cal culation to determ ne
t he robustness of your study?

A. |"'msorry, what do you nean by
cal cul ations for robustness?

Q Yeah, so your study was based across 237
beds at 11 facilities; correct?

A Yes.

Q Did you do any sort of calculation to
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det er m ne whet her 237 beds spread over 11 was an
accurate representati on based on total nunber of beds
of the inpact on energency services of substance use
treatnent centers?

A No. | believe ny projections were
accurate based on the sites used.

Q Have you seen any studi es evaluating the
I npact on energency services wth a sanple size as
smal | as 2377?

A I n what regards?

Q In the regards in which you're
representing that there would be a negligible inpact
on ltasca's energency services.

A. So | guess | just don't understand the
context of what you're referring to.

Are you asking if |'ve ever seen

any kind of a study done on 237 with a nunber or how

are you --
Q Yes.
A -- asking the question? |[|'mnot sure.
Q Have you -- have you seen any research

done on the inpact of substance use treatnent centers
on | ocal EMS services based on a sanple size of 237

beds spread across 11 facilities?
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A. Not specifically to beds and facilities.
Q |"mnearing the end, M. Dom nik
Did you have an under st andi ng of
what Itasca's policy is with regard to di spatching
police when there's a call for EMS or fire?

A | did not inquire specifically with
Itasca. |'mfamliar wth, obviously, the Chicago
netropolitan area and ot her areas.

Q Well, do you know -- | nean, if you
apply that to Itasca, what was your assunption as to
when police woul d be di spatched?

A So | think what you're referring to,

M. Ellenbecker, | |ooked at police independently; I
| ooked at fire independently; | | ooked at EMS

I ndependently, and | tried to represent the nunbers
fairly in that context.

Q Ckay. Did you add a police call for
every EMS and fire call?

A No. Like | said, | |looked at it
I ndependently. |[|f Itasca chooses to do that, they
certainly would add those nunbers, potentially, to
the police calls.

Q Looki ng at your conps, and if we | ook at

not necessarily the facility itself but where it is,
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okay, for instance, Serenity House Naperville on the
top, Leyden Famly Services in Hoffnman Estates, is
there any town or village or city that any of your
conps reside in that is equal to or smaller than

| tasca?

A Sorry, that was not part of the scope of
nmy anal ysis.

Q Wul d you agree that larger cities or
vil | ages have greater resources to draw upon?

A Not necessarily, M. Ellenbecker. You
know, Itasca is part of a MABAS systemto utilize
resources of all their neighbors, if needed. They're
part of a conbi ned di spatch center, so that gives
them nuch nore robust resources than even sone of the
| arger fire departnents in the area that don't
utilize MABAS, you know, equally.

The benefits to the Addi son
Consol i dated Di spatch Center and having the ability
to dispatch any resources inside DuPage County at any
time is sonmething that this area needs to be
comended for.

Q Yeah, and | agree, which you talked to
M. Di Nolfo about MABAS. I|'mactually -- |'m asking

you a very, very tight question.
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Wul d you agree that a | arger
town -- let's say Aurora with over 100, 000 people --
has nore energency services to draw upon than a town
like Itasca?

A | think that woul d depend on the call

| oadi ng, M. Ellenbecker, and how many calls they
had, which we utilized in this study.

You know, a town |ike Aurora,

Chi cago, for exanple, they have anbul ances that go on

8- and 10,000 calls a year per anbul ance -- per one
anmbul ance.

Q Ckay.

A. So, yes, they have nore resources, but

the resources aren't always avail abl e.
| tasca has one anbul ance.

Q And the conps you have in Aurora, based
on what you were able to find, even though a much
| arger town with nore call capacity, has total
treat nent beds of 44 conpared to the 96 proposed at
Haymar ket DuPage; correct?

A Yes, that is correct.

MR. ELLENBECKER: That's all | have for now,
M. Dom ni k. Thanks.

THE WTNESS: Thank you, M. ElIlenbecker.
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CHAI RVAN DALY: Ms. Smith, would you like to
Cross-exam ne the w tness?

M5. SMTH  Yes, please. Hold on one second.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY M. SM TH:

Q To start off, did you do any anal ysis
| ooking at the inpact of Haymarket's use of energency
services, police and fire, on the school district's
use of either energency or educational nonenergency
uses of police and fire in Itasca?

A No, Ms. Smith. M analysis was based
solely on the use of fire, EMS, and police.

Q General | y?
Yes.
But not specific to the --
No.

-- school district's use; correct?

> O > O >

No, nmm' am

Q kay. And then you were -- you were
asked a little about your statistical analysis. And
can you explain your basis for determ ning -- because
| believe | heard you testify that your -- you think
that your statistical analysis would prove predictive

even though it hasn't been proven that to date.
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On what -- what's your basis for
believing froma statistical perspective that it --
it is predictive?

A. It's very basic. The approach that, you
know, we utilized was based on the bed size, the
facility, the calls generated, the types of calls
generated, and then utilizing that to project the
recovery hones and treatnent hones, and then taking
that and applying it to the 240 bed site.

So there was nothing very
sophi sticated or conplicated there.

Q And why do you think that your sanple

size was -- well, do you think your sanple size, the
nearly 240, is big enough to produce a -- not just a
null -- or not just a result that happens to be by

chance, but one that's statistically significant?
A So yes, | believe it's accurate.

W took a very conservative
approach on the ALS/BLS, as we had tal ked about
earlier, so | think all of my nunbers are actually
very conservative. | think in the end the nunbers
are probably going to be | ess than what |I'm
proj ecti ng.

Q Well, | guess not the nunbers and the
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validity of -- you' ve testified a | ot how you cane up
wi th those, but how do you know the sanple size is
bi g enough to do a statistical analysis that's valid?
On what basis -- on what mathematical basis or basis
of surveys -- what are you using to say how big the
sanple size nust be to get a valid statistical
result?

A. So, Ms. Smth, to your question,
utilizing the sites and the services provided, these
are the best conps we could find in a close area that
provi ded the sane services.

| f there would have been nore, we
woul d have used nore. There were other sites that we
identified that provided other services that are not
provi ded, you know, at Haymar ket DuPage, so obviously
we couldn't use them

So, unfortunately, this was the
survey size group that was in a -- you know,
relatively close in the Chicago netropolitan area.

Q | understand that this was -- this was
the data that you had to work with, and you're saying
that -- and you' ve testified extensively as to why
there wasn't other data to be -- to be had, but how

do you get to the conclusion that it's enough for a
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statistically significant -- a neaningful -- froma
mass perspective, you know, how do we know it's
enough to forecast what woul d happen in the future
and not just -- am| being clear?

What mat hematical principle do we
know t hat 200-and-sone is enough to nmultiply it out?
A So let me try to clarify that. |

under st and your question better now. |'msorry.

Yes, I'mcomng at it froma fire
chief's perspective, that, you know, obviously
provides fire/ EMS protection to the comunities, and
t hrough ny accreditation experience where | assess
fire/ EMS departnents, public safety agenci es,
actually all over the world, so this is the process
that | woul d use.

There is no statistic mathemati cal
equation, |like in sonething that woul d maybe be
di scussed in the school system This is sonething
that we would utilize in our industry to nake
proj ections.

Q So to that point, if | asked for the
range of errors, so if you're using a nultiplier, you
know, how certain are you that -- that this is

forecasting the nunber of calls you' re saying?
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You coul dn't say that because
you're not comng at it froma math perspecti ve.
You're just trying to conpare kind of |ike an apple
to apple: We tried to cone up wwth a simlar
conpilation facility and we're saying that's |ikely
to occur, but not based on a mathematically reliable
method; is that right?

A That woul d be correct. W -- these are,
you know, practical applications and practi cal
nmet hods, and the approach that | utilized was very
conservati ve.

Like | indicated earlier, | think
inreality the calls are actually going to be |ess
than what |' m projecting.

Q And anot her topic, when did you --
bel i eve you conpl eted your report -- or all of your
data, at least in the report, is pre-2020; is that
right?

A Correct. As we had tal ked about
earlier, as | testified to earlier, the data that we
utilized was, you know, lar- -- the data we
originally requested was through the NFIRS system
and the |l atest data we could get was 2018, so that's

what kind of limted us, you know, in that approach.

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com

Page 117




© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN THE MATTER OF: HAYMARKET DUPAGE, LLC
Report of Proceedings - 01/06/2021

So we utilized the sane range. W
tried to use up to five years when possi bl e.

Q And have you | ooked back at your report
since the inpact of COVID on our community and
especially on energency services to determ ne whet her
the current -- the changed state of our public health
needs woul d change the anal ysis that you' ve done in
this report based on pre-2020 data?

A No, | have not.

M5. SMTH. Ckay. | have no other questions.
Thank you.

CHAl RMAN DALY: Thank you, Ms. Smith.

At this point intinme | would |ike
to open it up to the Plan Conmm ssion to ask questions
of the w tness.

COW SSI ONER RAY: This is Comm ssioner Ray.
| don't have any questi ons.

COW SSI ONER HOLMES:  This is Comm ssi oner
Hol mes. Nor do I.

COW SSI ONER DRUMVOND:  This i s Conm ssi oner
Drunmmond. | have no questi ons.

COMM SSI ONER CARELLGO  Conmmi ssi oner Carel |l o.
| have no questions.

CHAl RVAN DALY: Ckay, that leaves it with ne.
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This is Chairman Daly. | do have sonme questi ons.

So M. Domnik, if you'll bear with
me for a second.

Mo, can you please bring up the
Pol aris report again.

M. Domnik, in your report, Bates
No. 12, | believe is the way we would say it in |egal
ternms, chart 2 is at the top of the page.

|"mtrying to understand, on these
charts -- you know, charts are neant to tell a story,
and | see that maybe one of the intended points of
this chart is to show that Itasca' s average call per
day is low anong its peers in the region.

| s that a safe assunption?

MR DOMNK: |t wasn't necessarily to show
that it was low. It was just to show the average
nunmber of calls, is what the goal was, and |ike we
had tal ked about earlier, it was -- | was trying to
utilize the career departnents inside the MABAS
di vi si on.

CHAI RMAN DALY: Ckay. So as | scroll down,
then, to chart No. 3 -- and, yeah, | think the core
of this questioning is really the nunber.

Do we know for certain that the
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I npact of Haymarket on our energency service i S going
to be negligible, it's going to be significant, or
it'"s going to be other? And when | | ook at chart

No. 3 and | see an average nunber of runs per shift
or staff nenber at 68, which is actually |arger per
capita than sone of our |arger popul ation nei ghbors
wi thin the MABAS system | start to wonder if -- you
know, we -- we've tal ked about ad nauseam you know,

| tasca has one anbul ance and we're part of a nutual
agreenent system and there's the ability for -- you
know, if Itasca is on a run with the anbul ance, and
police show up to Haynmarket, no one is left to cover
an adj oi ning energency within our town, so we have to
call in Wodridge or sonebody from a nei ghbori ng
community shows up.

And, you know, in the report you've
basically concluded that there's a negligible inpact
to the calls for anbulance. |Is that a correct
st at enent ?

MR DOMNK: Correct. It's a small inpact.
CHAl RVAN DALY: Ckay. Small inpact.

And, you know, we've tal ked about

conparable facilities, and the scale doesn't quite

mat ch up because there aren't real apples to conpare
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this site to. There's really no parity, with the
exception of, say, Haymarket and West Loop; is that
correct?

MR DOM N K: Correct.

CHAl RMAN DALY: Ckay. So ny question, then,
Is if you did have accurate data for Haymarket
Chi cago, based on all the other findings in this
report, how inpactful would be the Haymarket Chicago
data in this report?

MR DOMNK So as | indicated earlier, it
was nmy full intent fromthe very beginning to utilize
Haymar ket Chi cago for the site.

We requested NFIRS data. W did a
FO A on the sane basis. W did all the other
subur ban agenci es where we asked for summary dat a.

Chi cago did not provide that. They
provi ded a basic data dunp and then left it to us to
try to determne. There was noted inconsistencies,

whi ch we tal ked about earlier.

It was ny full intent, sir, to
utilize Haymarket Chicago. | wanted to use it. |
tried to use it. | even FOA d the patient care data
records fromthe Illinois Departnent of Public Health

on everybody that was transported by anbul ance from
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that site.
So it was ny full intent to use
that. | just could not cone up with a credible,

reliable data source for that site that | could use.

CHAI RMAN DALY: Thank you for that, but ny
guestion was specifically, how inpactful would that
dat a have been?

| understand the backstory. |
under st and t he hoops and the challenges up to this
point, but if you did have that data, would it drive
this report or would it be background information or
woul d it be sonewhere in between?

MR DOMN K Sir, | wuld have used it as
one of the conparables. |It's a very conparable site.
It would have been right in there with the rest of
t hem

CHAI RVAN DALY: So ny next question then is,
did you ever directly ask Haymarket for their
records -- and | understand there is H PAA rul es and
privacy rules, but did you ever ask Haymarket for
their enmergency call data.

MR. DOM NI K:  Yes, | did.

CHAI RVAN DALY: And their response was what ?

MR. DOM NI K:  They're unable to produce that.
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The explanation that was given to ne is it's
contained in every single patient care report. There
Is no central database that they have for anbul ance
usage.

CHAI RMAN DALY: Ckay. | understand that
answer is what was given to you, but let ne dig a
little deeper on that.

If I -- if I really wanted to share
that information with you as Haymarket, would it be
reasonabl e to understand that soneone could go
t hrough each report and just put a tick mark on a
pi ece of paper for a given year and cone up with a
nunber that doesn't violate any sort of privacy or
anyt hi ng el se?

MR DOMNK I'mnot trying to be evasive,
sir. That's really sonething you'd have to ask
Haymarket. | did ask for the data and that was --
told you the response that | was given.

CHAl RMAN DALY: Ckay. | understand and |
appreciate that answer. |'l|l save that question for
Dr. Lustig later.

Let's switch to nutual aid for a
second, if | could get sone of your experience and

sonme answers on this.
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How often -- if I"'min a nutual aid
contract, as ltasca is in MABAS, how often is that
agreenent reviewed anong the peers within the group,
and coul d sonebody be asked to | eave because they're
a bad actor?

MR DOM N K: Yes. You know, the agreenents,
in nmy experience of 30-plus years and having, you
know, interacted with other MABAS divisions, as well,
Is that the agreenents, you know, are face val ue.
Everybody does it.

|f there is an instance where there
IS overusage, it's usually addressed between the
| eadership and the organi zations, and |'ve seen it
handl ed, you know, obviously very effectively there.

CHAI RMAN DALY: So, for exanple, specific to
this case, if Itasca was to experience |arger call
volunme than this report was to project -- that this
report does project, and there becane an overreliance
on nei ghboring communities wthin the MABAS system
because we have one anbul ance, at what point woul d
there be a triggered conversation, and then what
woul d a renedy be -- |ike what would MABAS do to
|tasca? Whuld they say, |ook, you need to buy a new

anbul ance now, or there'd be sone sort of financial
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outflow fromthe Village to cover this transgression,
if 1 may?

MR DOMNK Yeah. Sir, that's really up to
the individual communities. |'ve experienced, you
know, things of that nature in ny career and that's
up to them

There is no -- to answer your
guesti on, MABAS doesn't govern this or control this.
It's really up to the individual conmuniti es.

CHAl RVAN DALY: Ckay. So thenis it -- would
it be safe to assune that this is not only an Itasca
Issue as it relates to the energency services and the
projected calls, but it's really a MABAS as a prinary
st akehol der in this discussion?

MR. DOM NI K:  You know, MABAS is the fire
departnents, you know, so -- you know, MABAS doesn't
really have a stake, to be honest, in this. It's
really up to the individual conmmunities. MABAS is
really just a framework for all of us to work
toget her as a group and provide pre-arranged
responses when needed, you know, for energencies and
assi st ance.

CHAI RMAN DALY: Ckay, thank you for that.

To your know edge, does the Chicago
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Fire Departnent get paid per call -- like froma
financial reporting standpoint, are there billing
records from-- and |I'mnot tal king about the call

records to dispatch and whether a call was coded
correctly or not, but what I"'mreally getting to is
foll ow ng the noney.

|s there a trail wthin the Chicago
Fire Departnent or the City of Chicago financial
group, whatever it mght be, whereby any tine an
anbul ance is dispatched there is a billing report
generated for that call?

MR DOM N K: Yes. They charge for EMS
service nmuch |i ke everybody el se.

CHAl RVAN DALY: Do they charge not-for-profit
or gani zati ons?

MR DOMNK: | believe they charge
everybody, you know, pretty nuch the sane, you know,
as the suburban agenci es.

CHAl RMAN DALY: So would it be reasonable to
FOAthe City of Chicago for their billing records?

MR DOMNK: That's sonething | -- | gotta
be honest, | had not considered. W tried to get the
call data numerous ways, you know, based on credible

call s.
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| don't know enough about the
billing side of it to answer that question.

CHAI RMAN DALY: Ckay. | have no further
questions. Thank you for your testinony this
eveni ng.

Ms. O Keefe, is there any redirect?

M5. O KEEFE: | just have a coupl e quick
gquestions, M. Chairman. Let's see what tine it is.
Yes, we can definitely get this done.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY Ms. O KEEFE:

Q | just want to clarify one piece of
testinmony that you gave last nonth. There was a
di scussion regardi ng establishing protocols to use
when to call the Itasca Fire Departnent versus Elite.

A Ri ght .

Q And you were asked a question whet her or
not Haymar ket Chi cago had established protocols, and
you said no. And you -- do you nean with regards to
protocols for when you call ALS/BLS simlar to what
you' re tal king about to with Haymarket DuPage?

A No. I'msorry, | was not clear on that.

Chi cago -- Haymar ket Chicago has

prot ocol s of whether to call an anbul ance. They have
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a policy. W discussed that.
What | was referring to was the
ALS/BLS differentiation on who to call, whether you

call LEAD or you call for a nunicipal anbul ance.

Q So they do have a protocol --
A Yes.
Q -- for when they call anbul ances --
A Yes.
Q -- in energency situations? Ckay.
Second, just a quick question about
Elite -- an Elite contract.

You testified that you tal ked with

two gentleman, M. Dooley and M. --

A Spri nkl e.

Q -- Sprinkle about Elite's capacities to
provi de suppl enental services to Haynmarket DuPage.

It was inferred they were in the
sal es departnent, but we also had a conversation wth
a third gentleman at Elite, and his nane was?

A Chris Bollinger.

Q And what was his role in Elite?

A So he was a manager, the operations
manager for Elite, and he participated in the nore

techni cal side of the conversations to provide data.
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Q So was he the person who is responsible
for and nonitors response tines, staging |ocations,
et cetera?

A. Yes.

Q So he was involved in those di scussions?

A Correct.

Q (kay. Today -- to follow up on the
questions that M. Chairman asked, in terns of MABAS
and Itasca, there was an issue where |Itasca was
overutilizing resources of the MABAS di vi sion.

Wul d you assune that one of the
first steps would be that the Itasca Fire Depart nent
in order to resolve this would go to Haynarket ?

A. | had suggested earlier that it would be
beneficial to everyone if they would work together,
and conmuni cate, and review on a regul ar basis the
calls and the types of calls. So, yes, | would hope
that that's where they woul d go.

That's been ny experience and what
|'ve done in the past.

Q So can you clarify alittle bit about
what you've done in the past and what you woul d
recomend happen here in terns of communication --

enhanced communi cati on between the Fire Protection
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District and Haymar ket .

A. In ny tinme as fire chief, you know,
obvi ously we woul d have sites that would create
excessive calls or we felt they were excessive. W
woul d neet wwth their, you know, |eadership and
di scuss the reasons why, and we were always able to
address the issues at that point.

A lot of tinmes they were changi ng
procedures that they didn't know i npacted us or they
weren't -- sonetines they were just unaware of the
cal | s.

So I had recommended that Itasca
| eadershi p and Haynar ket | eadership neet on a regul ar
basis and tal k about, actually, even the dispatch
policies, and review the calls on a regular basis so
that everybody is clear on what's going on in the
systemthat's being utilized.

Q So it would be normal to have those kind
of conmuni cations --

A. Ch, very much.

Q -- with the EMS services just to nake
sure that everything works snoothly for all involved?
A It's -- it's in the best interest of

everybody to do that.
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Q Ckay, a couple nore.

Today if an anbul ance was called to
a school, does it -- it neans the residents won't get
an |tasca anbul ance?

A No, they'll get an anbul ance. |If the
| tasca anmbul ance i s unavail able, the dispatch center
tracks, actually, all the fire EMS resources in
DuPage County, so they know where the cl osest
anbul ance is avail able and they woul d send t hat
anbul ance.

Q Let's nmake sure |'ve got everything
her e.

So just in one last conclusion, to
sunmari ze your report, you found the projected total
I npact of Haymar ket DuPage on the energency services
Is going to be negligible; correct?

A Correct.

Q And there should not be any adverse
I npacts on response tines?

A Correct.

Q And there should not be the need to add
any additional personnel or equi pnment?

A Correct.

M5. O KEEFE: Okay. | have no further
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questions. Thank you very much, M. Dom niKk.

CHAI RVAN DALY: At this point before we
conclude, I'd like to ask if the attorneys for the
I nterested parties have any other foll ow up questions
based on subsequent questioning to their original
Cross-exam nati on.

MR DI NOLFO This is Steve DiNolfo. | do
have a few questions, if that's okay.

CHAl RMAN DALY: Pl ease proceed.

CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR DI NOLFO

Q Starting where | think the Chairman was
i nqui ring of you, M. Dom nik, about MABAS -- and I
guess just so everybody understands how this works --
there's sonething called Mdther MABAS, and then
wi thin Mdther MABAS there's a nunber of divisions
where various fire departnents are nenbers of;
correct?

A Correct.

Q Al right. So when we tal k about MABAS
itself, you would agree with ne that on a day-to-day
basis they generally have no invol venent; correct?

A Correct.

Q The day-to-day interactions happen with
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each division wthin MABAS?
A Correct.
Q So for lItasca, that would be division
12; correct?
A Correct.
Q So -- and the Chairman was asking you
about if you start excessively using -- well, let ne

back up first.
You were part of a MABAS di vi sion
when you were chief; correct?

A Correct.

Q And you understand that the
participation in MABAS in responding to your
nei ghbors is voluntary; there's no nandate that you
do it?

A Correct.

Q So if a neighbor feels that you are
abusi ng the relationshi p under MABAS, they're under
no obligation to show up; true?

A Correct.

Q Al right. And as a matter of fact,
iIf -- if -- you can actually be voted out of a MABAS
division by a magjority of the nmenbers of that

di vision; correct?
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A Correct.

Q Al right. So if you're, as | would
say, a bad nei ghbor where you are relying heavily on
your nei ghboring departnents to cover calls within
your community, there's going to be sone pushback
fromthose departnents; correct?

A Correct.

Q Al right. And that pushback can go
fromconversations all the way up to telling you
we're not going to respond; correct?

A VWll, M. D Nolfo, |I've never heard
anyone say, in our area anyhow, that they won't
respond, so -- yes.

Q Fair. But nobody has had a 240-bed drug
rehab facility put into their -- their fire district,
to your know edge, until this point; correct?

A Correct.

Q Al'l right. And one other section that
the Chairman touched on was on your chart concerning
calls per shift over a five-year average.

Do you renenber hi m asking you
guesti ons about that?

A Yes, | do.

Q And | think it basically shows that
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El mhurst -- which is a big nunicipality, correct,

than Itasca --

A. Yes.

Q -- have nore anbul ances?

A. Yes.

Q Al right. And they respond to, on

average, over a five-year period 65 calls, where
Itasca Fire Protection District with its one
anbul ance averages 68; is that correct?

A Correct.

Q And West Chi cago, you agree with ne, is
a bigger unit of -- I"msorry, a bigger village or
city than Itasca?

A Correct.

Q Have multiple stations?

A. Yes.

Q Mul ti pl e anbul ances, and yet they
respond on average to less calls over a five-year
period than Itasca. |Is that correct?

A Correct.

Q And with the exception of, perhaps,
Cakbr ook Terrace, you would agree with ne that all
the other entities listed have nmultiple stations,

mul ti pl e anbul ances, and -- and nore personnel than
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Itasca Fire Protection District; correct?

A. Correct, but I think you're
m srepresenting the chart.

The chart is neant to show how nany
calls per staff nenber. So obviously |arger
communi ties have nore staff, they can go on nore
calls or less calls. It's the community's
determ nation on their staffing.

Q And, I'"'msorry, | wasn't trying to

m srepresent the chart.

| was just asking the question that
ot her than Cakbrook Terrace, all the other
muni cipalities are significantly |arger and have nore
anbul ances and recourses than Itasca Fire Protection
District. That was nmy only question. And you agree
with that; correct?

A Well, as | had indicated earlier, this
was MABAS Division 12, and the departnents that |
could determ ne were fully career.

So | did not |ook, M. Di Nolfo, for
ot her departnents that were smaller or |arger.

Thi s MABAS groupi ng, as you tal ked
about, is all broken down into groups. For ne, as

being a fire professional wth 30-plus years of
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experience, very famliar with the MABAS system this
was the easiest way for ne to identify a group, is
t hrough t he MABAS di vi si on.

Q Ckay. Switching gears on you now, is
that Ms. O Keefe asked you about, apparently, you're
clarifying your testinony concerning protocols for
Haymar ket Chi cago.

You said there's a policy for when
to call for an anbul ance, is that correct, that
exi sts at the Haymarket facility?

A Yes, it does.

Q Al right. And what is their policy for
when they' re supposed to call an anbul ance?

A It's a basic triaging policy.

Q Ckay. Very briefly, tell nme when --
what triggers to call the anbul ance when they get to
the triage? Wat do they need for the triage to call
an anbul ance?

A. M. DiNolfo, | looked at it a while ago.
They had a conprehensive policy, in nmy opinion, that
they utilize with their trained nedical professionals
on when an anbul ance was needed, and then that they
woul d call the anbul ance if needed.

Q Ckay. But as you sit here today,
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under st andi ng you nay have seen it a while ago, you
don't know what it says or what the triage tree is
for that?

A. Not exactly, no.

Q Ckay. Did you -- do you -- have you
seen the proposed policy for the facility here in
Haymar ket ?

A. So, yes. That was part of the reason we
were tal king about it.

W worked on -- | gave them i deas.
| did not create the policy. | gave them ny
perspective on that policy and what | felt was
inmportant for themto utilize in that policy.

And | do believe that that woul d
al so be beneficial if the Itasca Fire Protection
District would be involved in that.

Q Ckay. And under your policy that you
gave advice as to howit should work, when is -- and
| don't care whether it's 911 or Elite. Wen is
Haymar ket going to call for an anbul ance regardl ess
of who it is?

A So it is very basic based on nedical
need. You know, very simlar, actually, to the

policy in Chicago, but the details of that | | ook for
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themto work out. | did not get involved in the
details, sir.

Q Al right. Now, Counsel also asked you
about, apparently, sone conversations you had with
the Elite Anbulance. And I think it was
M. Ell enbecker who asked you who you spoke w th.
And your nenory was that you spoke to two sal esnen;
Is that correct? You had no recollection at the tine
of speaking to the operational nmanager?

A No. No, that was not the case at all.

We spoke with those two people
extensively. W also spoke with M. Bollinger, you
know, actually nore than once.

Q |'' mnot saying you didn't speak with
him M point is very sinple. Wen you were asked
who you spoke with, at the tine you answered the
guestion the only two people you could renenber
speaking to were the two sal esnen; correct?

A No, that's not true. | nentioned their

names, but | certainly was not trying to not include

M. Bollinger. |If | made it sound that way, |'m
sorry.

Q You don't have to apol ogi ze by any
nmeans.
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| guess the reason |I'm asking the
question is, is given that you are here to testify
about what Elite woul d be doi ng and not be doing as
it pertains to the Haymarket facility, | would think
that the person who would be in the forefront woul d
be the operations nmanager who could speak to the
capacities and abilities of Elite, and I was just
curious why you didn't nmention him

A No, we did speak with him |I'msorry if
| didn't bring that nanme up earlier.

Q Ckay. You also started talking,
bel i eve, about interaction between, you said, lItasca
and Haymar ket .

Do you know what | evel of
i nteracti on Haymar ket Chicago has with the Chicago
Fire Departnent, how nmuch they interact wth those?

M5. O KEEFE: njection. That's outside the
scope of the redirect.

MR DI NOLFO It -- it is not. It is
exactly what you asked and --

M5. O KEEFE: No, we talked -- we were
focusing -- the nature of the question was focusing
on good conmuni cations that could be had between

|tasca and the Fire Protection D strict and
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Haymar ket .
It did not involve in any way
conmuni cati on between -- with the Chicago Fire

Departnent, so it's outside the scope of redirect.

MR DI NOLFO Wwell, | don't think it is, and
iIf -- the thing is, if your point is about the
communi cation, | think what they do now is rel evant

to what they're going to do, potentially, when the
facility shows up in Itasca.
"1l let M. Hervas rule.

MR. HERVAS. M. D Nolfo, would you just
pl ease repeat the question again.

MR DI NOLFO  Sure.
BY MR DI NOLFQO

Q You had sone conversation about
I nteraction between the EMS providers and Haynarket,
and you said that would be a nornmal process that you
have seen and you actually have experienced yourself;
correct?

A Are you directing the question back at
me, M. D Nolfo?

Q That's correct, M. Dom niKk.

A Ckay. Yes.

Q Al right. And you, | think, to one of
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Ms. O Keefe's questions said that you woul d expect
Itasca to have sone |ine of comunication wth
Haymar ket to discuss issues. D d |l kind of summari ze
what you said correctly?

A Yes. It would be good business
practice, yes.

Q Sure. So ny question is, the best way
to gauge Haymarket's willingness to participate in
comruni cation with Itasca Fire Protection District
woul d be for you to know what their |evel of
comruni cation is with the Gty of Chicago Fire
Depart nent.

Do you know what it is?
M5. O KEEFE: And, therefore, | objected and

said it was outside the scope of redirect --

MR HERVAS. |'mgoing to overrule --

M5. O KEEFE: -- straight into --

MR. HERVAS: 1'mgoing to overrule the
objection. It goes directly to the -- to the subject

matter of discussing the MABAS issue. He's just
aski ng what he knows about any other communi cati on.
| think it's fair.
BY MR DI NCLFO

Q So, M. Dom nik, do you know what | evel
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of commruni cati on Haymar ket Chi cago has with the
Chi cago Fire Departnent?

A No. Al | can explainis they seemto
have a good working relationship, and Chi cago
obvi ously provides service to them

Q And | think you shared with us,
har keni ng back to your days as chief, that you had
certain situations where you had conversations with
facilities in your jurisdiction that were creating
what you believe to be excessive calls.

Do you renenber saying that just a
few m nutes ago?

A. Yes.

Q Al right. And those would be
facilities |ike nursing hones, perhaps, urgent care
facilities, long-termcare facilities, things of that
nat ur e?

A. Those are sone of them correct.

Q What ot her ones were there that you had
I ssues with?

A Mostly in that area. Sonetines,
actually, it was fire departnents thensel ves.

Q Ckay. Themcalling you too often saying
| need help; right?
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A. Well, it's agreenents that we worked out
to provide service collectively.

Q Sure. Al right.

Now, you would agree with ne that
you can have a |l ot of conversations with nursing
homes, nei ghboring departnents, but you're not aware
of any power that Itasca Fire Protection D strict has
to make Haynmarket or any other entity reduce their
I npact on their service needs; true?

A Correct.

Q Al right. So you can talk until you're
blue in the face. Unless that entity is wlling to
be a good partner, things may not change?

A That certainly could happen.

Q Just give ne one nonent. | think I'm
all done wth nmy questions.

MR DI NOLFO. | have no further questions.
Thank you, M. Dom ni k.

MR, ELLENBECKER:. M. Chairman, | just have a
very short foll ow up.

CHAI RMAN DALY: Pl ease proceed.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR ELLENBECKER:

Q M. Domnik, this is actually a
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followup to sone of the Chairman's questioni ng of
you regardi ng Haynmarket's tracking or ability to
track its use of EMS services at its Wst Loop
facility.

Are you aware that Haymarket first
filed its application in the town of Itasca on

July 5th, 20197

A. | did not research that, so if that's
the case, |I'mnot aware of it.
Q "Il represent to you that public

records show that Haymarket filed its application in
this case on July 5th, 2019. Based on that, are you
aware of any effort by Haymarket in the 18 nonths
since it first filed its application in Itasca to
make any determ nation or track its Haymarket West
Loop facilities's use of Chicago EMS?

A |"msorry, sir, | really can't coment
on that. | asked themfor the data, as we spoke
about earlier, and they said the data was
unavai | abl e.

Q Right. So given that data is
unavail abl e, you' re not aware of Haynmarket nmaki ng any
effort to track its reliance on Chicago EMsS in the 18

nmonths since it first filed its application to
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| tasca?

A. Correct, | did not specifically ask, no.

MR, ELLENBECKER: All right. That's all |
have. Thank you, M. Chairnan.

CHAI RVAN DALY: You're wel cone,

M. Ell enbecker.
Ms. Smth, do you have any
foll ow up before we concl ude?

M5. SMTH. No, no further followup. Thank
you.

CHAI RVAN DALY: Ckay, thank you.

At this point |I believe -- and
Ms. O Keefe please correct ne if |I'mwong, but I
believe we're finished with your witness. And if you
coul d pl ease just give us a preview of what we can
expect next week or the next two weeks, perhaps.

M5. O KEEFE: Certainly. Next week we wll
start wth M. Polach, who, as you know, was supposed
to testify the first evening, so his materials have
al ready been submtted into the record. And then
we'll nove on to Dr. Lustig to do sone of the
foll ow up questions that we anticipate you have. And
then we'll end with M. Kissel.

CHAl RMAN DALY: Ckay, thank you for that.

Grove & Associates Reporting and Video Services
(630) 462-0060 www.groveandassoc.com



© 00 N oo o B~ w N Pk

N NN NN P B R R R R R R R
A W N P O ©W 00 N O OO M W N B O

IN THE MATTER OF: HAYMARKET DUPAGE, LLC

Report of Proceedings - 01/06/2021 Page 147

Barring any other further
comrentary, | would ask for a notion to continue this
hearing until next Wdnesday, January 13th. Could I
get a notion, please?

COW SSI ONER HOLMES: So noved. This is
Comm ssi oner Hol nes.

COMM SSI ONER RAY:  Conmi ssi oner Ray, second.

CHAI RVAN DALY: Would the secretary pl ease
call the vote.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Comm ssi oner
Carel | 0?

COW SSI ONER CARELLG  For.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Comm ssi oner
Dr unmond?

COW SSI ONER DRUMMOND:  For .

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Comm ssi oner
Hol mes?

COW SSI ONER HOLMES:  For.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE:  Commi ssi oner
Ray?

COW SSI ONER RAY:  For .

CHAI RVAN DALY: Mdtion carries. This neeting
Is continued until next Wdnesday, January 13th.

May | finally get a notion to
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adjourn for this eveni ng?

COMWM SSI ONER HOLMES: So noved. Conmi ssi oner
Hol nes.

COW SSI ONER RAY:  Second, Ray.

CHAI RMAN DALY: Secretary, please call the
vot e.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Conm ssi on
Carel | 0?

COW SSI ONER CARELLO  For.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Comm ssi oner
Dr unmond?

COW SSI ONER DRUMVOND:  For .

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Comm ssi oner
Hol nmes?

COW SSI ONER HOLMES:  For.

RECORDI NG SECRETARY MELONE: Comm ssi oner
Ray?

COW SSI ONER RAY:  For.

CHAI RVAN DALY: Motion carries.

Thank you everyone, and have a safe
week, and we'll re-adjourn -- or reconvene, excuse
me, next Wednesday. Take care.

M5. O KEEFE: Thank you very nuch

* * * * *
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STATE OF ILLINO S )
) SS.

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

I, Shannon M Frey, CSR No. 84-002277, RMVR,
CRR, do hereby certify that | reported in shorthand
t he proceedi ngs had at the hearing of the
above-entitl ed cause and that the foregoi ng Report of
Proceedi ngs, Pages 5 through 148, inclusive, is a
true, correct, and conplete transcript of ny
shorthand notes taken at the tine and pl ace
af or esai d.

| further certify that I am not counsel for
nor in any way related to any of the parties to this
matter, nor aml in any way directly or indirectly

interested in the outcone thereof.

This certification applies only to those
transcripts, original and copies, produced under ny
direction and control; and | assume no responsibility
for the accuracy of any copies which are not so
pr oduced.

IN WTNESS WHERECE, | have hereunto set ny

hand this 15th day of Jan y, 2021. \:12Aj97y,

Certified Shorthand Reporter
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